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thNOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 61 Annual General Meeting of the Members of Foseco India Limited will be held 

on Tuesday, 24 April, 2018 at 1200 Hours (IST) at the Registered Office of the Company at Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, 

Taluka Shirur, District Pune - 412 208, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2017, the Statement of 

Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date including any explanatory note 

annexed to, or forming part of, the aforementioned documents, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

the Auditors thereon.

2. To confirm the payment of two Interim Dividends on Equity Shares aggregating to Rs. 13 per share (i.e., 130%) on a 

share of Rs. 10 each and to declare a final dividend of Rs. 12 per share (i.e., 120%) on the Equity Shares of the 

Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Merryl France Durrenbach (DIN: 06920690), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4. To ratify the appointment of the Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if 

thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, the 

appointment of Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm registration no. - 012754N / N500016), Chartered 

Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General 

Meeting till the conclusion of the 62nd Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby ratified, at such remuneration plus 

GST, out of pocket and travelling expenses etc. as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the 

Company and the Statutory Auditors based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

5. To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending on 31 December 2018 and in this 

regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration decided by the Board of 

Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed for a sum of 

Rs. 3,50,000/- (Rupees three lakh fifty thousand only) plus Goods and Services Tax at the applicable rates and 

reimbursement of out of pocket expenses payable to Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, Pune (Firm 

Foseco India Limited
Registered Office: Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, 

Taluka Shirur, District Pune – 412208

Tele: +91 (0)2137 668100, • Fax: +91 (0)2137 668360,

• Website: www.fosecoindia.com • E-mail ID: investor.grievance@foseco.com

Corporate Identity Number: L24294PN1958PLC011052
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Registration No: 000240) who have been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, for conducting the audit 

of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on 31 December 2018.”

      

 Registered Office:  By Order of the Board of Directors

 Gat Nos. 922 & 923,   Mahendra Kumar Dutia

 Sanaswadi, Taluka Shirur, Controller of Accounts & Company Secretary

 District Pune 412 208 

 Date: 1 February, 2018

NOTES: 

1. The Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the special 

business is annexed to this Notice.

2. A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING SHALL BE ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT ANOTHER PERSON AS HIS/HER PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF 

AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

3. The instrument appointing proxy, in order to be effective, must be received by the Company at the Registered Office 

not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. Members / Proxies are requested to sign the 

attendance slip annexed to the proxy form and hand it over at the gate of the venue of the Meeting.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(2) of the Companies (Management 

& Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in 

the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding 

more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy 

and such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

5. Corporate Members are requested to send a Board Resolution duly certified, authorising their representative to attend 

and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting.

6. The proxy form should be signed by the appointer or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled 

to vote.

8. A route map showing direction to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is provided at the end of this Notice.

9. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 14 April 2018 

to Tuesday, 24 April 2018 (both days inclusive) in terms of the provision of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

for determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the payment of final dividend, if declared at the Meeting.

10. The final dividend, if declared at the AGM, shall be paid/credited on or before Wednesday, 23 May 2018 as under, to 

those Members of the Company:

I) whose names appear in the Company's Register of Members in respect of shares held in physical form, after 

giving effect to all valid share transfers lodged with the Company on or before the close of business hours on 

Friday, 13 April 2018; and

II) whose names appear as beneficial owners in respect of shares held in demat form, as per the details furnished 

for this purpose by the National Securities Depository Limited and the Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited, as of the close of business hours on Friday, 13 April 2018.
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11. Members holding securities in physical form are requested to intimate any change in address, change of name, bank 

details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), Electronic Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, nominations, e-

mail address, contact numbers, etc., to the Company's Registrar & Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., at 

Block 202, 2nd Floor, Akshay Complex, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune - 411 001 (Phone No. 020-2616 1629 / 2616 0084, 

Email:pune@linkintime.co.in) for providing efficient and better services. Members holding securities in 

dematerialised form are requested to intimate such changes to their respective depository participants.

12. Members can avail of the facility of nomination in respect of securities held by them in physical form pursuant to the 

provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members desiring to avail of this facility may send their 

nomination in the prescribed form duly filled-in to RTA. The nomination form can be downloaded from the website of 

the Company or can be obtained from the RTA. Members holding shares in dematerialised form may contact their 

respective Depository Participant (DP) for availing this facility.

13. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED/UNPAID DIVIDENDS TO INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

(IEPF): Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules, all unclaimed / unpaid 

dividend remaining unclaimed / unpaid with the Company on the expiry of 7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer 

to the unclaimed / unpaid account, will be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund set up by the 

Central Government. Members are requested to write to the Company and/or Share Transfer Agents, if any dividend 

warrants are not encashed so that fresh / re-validated warrants could be issued by the Company. Members can visit 

the Company's website www.fosecoindia.com to check the details of their unclaimed dividend under the Investors' 

Section.

14. TRANSFER OF EQUITY SHARES TO THE INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF): In 

compliance with the requirements laid down in Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 'Investor 

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016', the Company has 

transferred all equity shares in respect of which dividends had remained unpaid or unclaimed by the shareholders for 

seven consecutive years or more, to the Demat Account of the IEPF. However, the Shareholders are entitled to claim 

their shares including all the corporate benefits accruing on such shares, if any, from the IEPF Authority by submitting 

an online application in Form IEPF-5 and sending a physical copy of the Form IEPF-5 duly signed by all the joint 

shareholders, if any, as per the specimen signature recorded with the Company along with requisite documents 

enumerated in the Form IEPF-5, to the Company's RTA. The Rules and Form IEPF-5, as prescribed, for claiming back 

the shares, are available on the website of the IEPF www.iepf.gov.in. It may please be noted that no claim shall lie 

against the Company in respect of share(s) transferred to IEPF pursuant to the said Rules. The details of the 

shareholders whose equity shares had been transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF is available on the website 

of the Company at URL: Fosecoindia.com/View/ Information_on_Transfer_of_Shares_to_IEPF.aspx.

15. In line with the Green Initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, this Annual Report is being sent by electronic mode 

to those Shareholders whose E-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s), unless a 

Shareholder has requested for a physical copy of the same. For Shareholders who have not registered their E-mail 

addresses, physical copies of the Annual Report are being sent by the permitted mode. However, any Shareholder 

who wish to have a physical copy of the Annual Report may write to the Company's Registrar at 

pune@linkintime.co.in.

16. To ensure that shareholders' queries are answered in full, shareholders are requested to write to the Company at an 

early date at the e-mail ID – investor.grievance@foseco.com.

17. The Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report will remain open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 

on all working days between 1000 Hours (IST) to 1300 Hours (IST) excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays 

up to the date of the AGM. These documents will be made available on the Company's website www.fosecoindia.com.
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18. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(“PAN”) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in dematerialised form are, therefore, 

requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company's Registrar & Transfer Agents, 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

19. Voting through electronic means:

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide its 

Members facility to exercise their right to vote on Resolutions proposed to be considered at this AGM by 

electronic means which includes “remote e-voting” i.e, from a place other than venue of the AGM, provided by 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(I) The voting period begins on Friday, 20 April 2018 at 1000 Hours (IST) and ends on Monday, 23 

April 2018 at 1700 Hours (IST). During this period, Shareholders' of the Company, holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date being Tuesday, 17 April 2018 

will be eligible to vote by electronic means or at the AGM.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting 

period.

(iii) Click on “Shareholders / Members” tab.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.

(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, Members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digits' alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number which is printed on the 

Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN Field.

Dividend 

Bank Details

OR

Date of Birth 

(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the Company records in order to login.

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company, please 

enter the Member ID / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as 

mentioned in instruction (iv).
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they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that 

this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for Resolutions of any other Company 

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

Resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for “FOSECO INDIA LIMITED” on which you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to 

the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the Resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will 

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 

“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the Resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take out print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If a Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password, then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android based 

mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone 

users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please 

follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xix) Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians

 Non-Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the Scrutiniser to 

verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or 

write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

II. The facility of voting shall also be made available at the Meeting. Members attending the Meeting who have not 

already cast their vote by remote e-voting facility shall be able to exercise their right at the Meeting.

III. The Members who have exercised their right to vote by remote e-voting facility prior to the Meeting may also 

attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to vote again at the Meeting. If a Member casts vote again, then 
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votes cast through remote e-voting facility shall prevail and voting at the Meeting will be treated invalid.

IV. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the 

Company as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, 17 April 2018. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register 

of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only 

shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or voting at the AGM. Any person who has ceased to be 

the Member of the Company before the cut-off date will not be entitled for remote e-voting or voting at the 

Meeting. Any person, who becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares 

as on the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at pune@linkintime.co.in 

or to the Company at investor.grievance@foseco.com. However, if you are already registered with CDSL for 

e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

V. The Company has appointed Mr. Rajesh Karunakaran, Practising Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 

7441, CP No. 6581), as the Scrutiniser, to scrutinize the e-voting process, in a fair and transparent manner.

VI. The Chairperson shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on which voting is to be held, 

allow voting with the assistance of the Scrutiniser, by use of ballot paper to all those Members who are present 

at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

VII. The Scrutiniser shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the Meeting and 

thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 

employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 

consolidated Scrutiniser's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairperson or a 

person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 

forthwith.

VIII. The Results declared along with the Report of the Scrutiniser shall be placed on the website of the Company 

www.fosecoindia.com and on the website of CDSL immediately after the declaration of result by the 

Chairperson or a person authorised by him in writing. The results shall also be communicated to the Stock 

Exchanges.

Annexure to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) the following Explanatory 

Statements set out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 4 and 5 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No. 4

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm registration no. - 012754N / N500016), Chartered Accountants, were 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 60th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27 April 

2017, for a period of 5 years, to hold office from the conclusion of the 60th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 

65th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment by the 

Members at every Annual General Meeting.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, has furnished a certificate expressing their intention to be re-appointed as the 

Statutory Auditors, and stating that their appointment if ratified, at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, would be in 

accordance with the conditions laid down under Section 139 & 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors hereby proposes ratification of the appointment 

of Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold 
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office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 62nd Annual General Meeting to be held in 

the year 2019, at such remuneration plus GST, out of pocket and travelling expenses etc. as may be mutually agreed between 

the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval of the Shareholders of the Company, as laid 

down in Ordinary Business item no. 4.

None of the Directors, Manager or any other key managerial personnel or any of their relatives, is concerned or interested, 

whether financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of 

the Cost Auditor – Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for 

the financial year ending on 31 December 2018, at a remuneration of Rs. 3,50,000/- (Rupees three lakh fifty thousand only) 

plus GST at the applicable rates and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, requires that 

the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor shall be ratified by the Shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval of the Shareholders of the Company ratifying the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the year ending on 31 December 2018, as laid down in Special Business item 

no. 5.

None of the Directors, or any key managerial personnel or any of their relatives, are concerned or interested, whether 

financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.
   

Registered Office:   By Order of the Board of Directors

Gat Nos. 922 & 923,   Mahendra Kumar Dutia

Sanaswadi, Taluka Shirur,  Controller of Accounts & Company Secretary

District Pune 412 208 

Date: 1 February, 2018   
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stYour Directors are pleased to present the Company's 61  Annual Report and the audited accounts for the year ended 

31 December 2017.

Financial Results & Performance Review      (All Figures in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars
Accounting 
year ended               

31-Dec-2017

Accounting 
year ended 

31-Dec-2016

Total Revenue from Operations 36,012.51 34,159.94

Operating Expenses (30,665.08) (28,480.95)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 5,347.43 5,678.99

Finance Cost (35.26) (41.52)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (534.13) (505.20)

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 4,778.04 5,132.27

Tax Expense (1,646.13) (1,824.10)

Profit for the Period (PAT) 3,131.91 3,308.17

Balance brought forward from previous year 6,521.95 5,312.70

Amount available for appropriation 9,653.86 8,620.87

Appropriations:

Interim Dividends 830.24 1,021.83

Final Dividend (Proposed) 766.37 447.05

Tax on Dividends (Interim and Final) 325.04 299.04

Transferred to General Reserves 313.19 331.00

Surplus carried to the Balance Sheet 7,419.02 6,521.95

Total Appropriations 9,653.86 8,620.87

Your Directors are pleased to inform that during the year under review your Company registered a growth of 5.4% in Revenue 

and a drop in Profit After Tax by 5.3% over the year 2016. The growth in revenue was achieved through Solutions Projects at 

Customers and Strategic Share Gain in Feeding, Coatings and Non-Ferrous Solutions Groups. Margins dropped due to 

volatility in raw material prices. There was a lag in recovery of prices of the principal raw materials from the market due to 

fiercely competitive environment. The prices were under pressure due to stiff competition arising out of limited market 

opportunities.

Dividend

During the year, your Directors declared two Interim Dividends, as detailed below:

Particulars of Dividend Date of declaration Record Date  Dividend % Dividend per share

st1  Interim Dividend 27 July, 2017  5 August, 2017       60           Rs. 6

nd2  Interim Dividend 11 November 2017 25 November 2017      70           Rs. 7

Your Directors are pleased to recommend for approval of the Shareholders', a Final Dividend of Rs. 12/- per share 

(i.e., 120%), on an Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each, for the financial year ended 31 December 2017, taking the total dividend to 

Rs. 25/- per share (i.e., 250%) (previous year Rs. 23 per share i.e., 230%).

The total pay-out of the two Interim Dividends and Proposed Final Dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2017, 

inclusive of dividend distribution tax, will aggregate to Rs. 1921.65 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 1767.92 Lakhs in the previous 

year.

Directors' Report
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Transfer to Reserves

Your Company has transferred Rs. 313.19 Lakhs, without taking into consideration the amount of proposed outgo on account 

of the final dividend (previous year: Rs. 331 Lakhs) to the General Reserves out of the current year profit.

Financial Year of the Company

Your Company has adopted the Calendar Year from 1st January to 31st December as its Financial Year.

Report on Corporate Governance & Management Discussion & Analysis

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015, a separate section titled Report on Corporate Governance together with a Certificate from the Practicing 

Company Secretary forms part of this Annual Report.

A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis is included as a part of this Annual Report.

Subsidiaries

Your Company does not have any subsidiary / subsidiaries within the meaning of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”). Therefore, a statement under the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, containing salient features of the financial 

statements of the Company's subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is not attached.

Public Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and accordingly no amount was outstanding as on the date of 

the Balance Sheet.

Extract of the Annual Return

As required under Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013, an extract of the Annual Return in 

Form No. MGT 9, at the financial year ended 31 December 2017, is given in Annexure A, which forms part of this Board 

Report.

Number of Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors met four times during the year 2017 on the following dates: 8 February 2017, 26 April 2017, 27 July 

2017 and 11 November 2017. The information on the Meetings is given in the Report on Corporate Governance that forms 

part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period of 120 days prescribed by the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of your Company, Ms. Merryl 

France Durrenbach (DIN: 06920690), a Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director on the Board of the Company, who is 

a nominee of the Promoter Company – Foseco Overseas Limited, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

The Board recommends her re-appointment. A brief resume and other relevant details of her re-appointment are provided in 

the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Pradeep Mallick (DIN: 00061256), Mr. Ajit Shah 

(DIN: 02396765) and Mrs. Indira Parikh (DIN: 00143801) were appointed as Independent Directors at the Annual General 

Meeting of the Company held on 27 March 2015. The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are as 

per Schedule IV of the Act. They have submitted a declaration confirming that each of them meets the criteria of 

independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect 

their status as Independent Director during the year.

In compliance with the Company Policy, Pradeep Mallick, a Non-Executive Independent Director will retire at the conclusion 

of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as he has attained the age of 75 years.

During the year, no Non-Executive Director except the nominee Director appointed by the Promoter Company has had any 

pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company. 

The following persons are designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:
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1. Mr. Sanjay Mathur, Managing Director,

2. Mr. R Umesh, Chief Financial Officer,

3. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Dutia, Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary.

There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the year 2017.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed with no material 

departures;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 

year and of the profit of the Company for the same period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls in the Company that are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that these are 

adequate and are operating effectively;

Policy on Directors' Appointment and Remuneration

The policy of the Company on Directors' Appointment and Remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, 

positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013, 

adopted by the Board is covered in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of this Annual Report.

Performance Evaluation of the Directors etc.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation by the Board of its own 

performance and that of the various Committees of the Board and the individual Directors including the Chairperson. The 

framework of performance evaluation of the Directors captures the following points:

- Key attributes of the Independent Directors that justify his / her extension / continuation on the Board of the Company;

- Participation of the Directors in the Board proceedings and his / her effectiveness;

More details on this subject is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Ajit Shah as its Chairperson, Mr. Pradeep Mallick and Mrs. Indira Parikh, all of whom are 

Independent Directors and Mrs. Merryl Durrenbach as a Non-Executive, Non-Independent Member. More details on the 

Committee are given in the Report on Corporate Governance.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls (IFC)

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The 

internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively so as to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business 

operations. The internal controls are designed in a manner that facilitates achievement of three-pronged objectives viz., i) 

support the achievement of the Company's business objectives, ii) mitigate risks to acceptable level, and iii) support sound 

decision making and good governance.

The adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial controls are demonstrated by following the procedures as set out 

below: -

i. The internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and producing 

reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding assets from 

unauthorised use, executing transactions with proper authorisation and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. 
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The Company has a well-defined delegation of power with authority limits for approving revenue as-well-as 

expenditure. Processes for formulating and reviewing annual and long-term business plans have been laid down. 

ii. The Audit Committee periodically deliberates on the operations of the Company with the Members of the 

Management. It also sought the views of B S R & Associates LLP, who were the Statutory Auditors during the period 

beginning 1 January 2017 till 27 April 2017 and Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, who are the current 

Statutory Auditors since 27 April 2017, on the internal financial control systems.

iii. The Company has appointed P G Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the Company. The Audit 

Committee in consultation with the Internal Auditors formulates the audit plan, scope, functioning and methodology, 

which are reviewed every year, in a manner that they cover all areas of operation. The Internal Audit covers inter alia, 

monitoring and evaluating the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with 

operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations and adequacy of insurance coverage of all 

assets. Periodical Internal Audit Reports are submitted to the Audit Committee, to ensure complete independence, 

which are then extensively deliberated at every Audit Committee Meeting in the presence of the Internal and External 

Auditors. Based on the review by the Audit Committee, process owners undertake corrective actions in their 

respective areas and consider suggestions for improvement. The Internal Auditors have expressed that the internal 

control system in the Company is robust and effective.

iv. The Board has also put in place requisite legal compliance framework to ensure compliance of all the applicable laws 

and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

v. The Company's financial records are maintained on the ERP System which is effective and adequate in line with the 

size of its operations.

Particulars of Loans, Investments, Guarantees and Securities

Your Company has neither advanced any loans, nor made any investments or given any guarantees and / or provided any 

securities to anybody, whether directly or indirectly, within the meaning of Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence, 

there are no details worth providing.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 

with related parties were on an arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. During the year, the Company 

had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material, and 

therefore, Shareholders' approval was not required to be obtained, in accordance with the Policy of the Company on 

materiality of related party transactions. Thus, provisions of Sections 134(3)(h) and 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company and therefore, Form No. AOC-2 has 

not been attached.

In compliance with the requirements laid down in the SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 

2015, all related party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit 

Committee had been obtained for transactions which were foreseeable and of repetitive nature. All transactions entered into 

with the related parties are presented to the Audit Committee by way of a statement giving details of all transactions.

The Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Parties as approved by the Board has been 

uploaded on the Company's website at URL: FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx. Your Directors draw attention of the 

Members to Note 27 attached to the financial statement which sets out related party disclosures

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 is given in Annexure B to this Report.

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and also the 

Statement containing particulars of employees as required under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 is provided in Annexure C forming part of this Report.
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Auditors and Auditors' Report

Statutory Auditors

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm registration no. - 012754N / N500016), Chartered Accountants, 7th 

Floor, Business Bay, Tower A, Wing - 1, Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune – 411006 were appointed as the Statutory Auditors in 

the 60th Annual General Meeting held on 27 April 2017.

They will hold office as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of 5 years until the conclusion of the 65th Annual 

General Meeting to be held in the year 2022. In terms of the provision of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

appointment of the Statutory Auditors shall be placed for ratification at every Annual General Meeting, if required under the 

Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.

Your Company has received a written confirmation from Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, to the effect that their 

appointment as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, if ratified, will be as per the requirements laid down under Section 139 

and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that they are not 

disqualified for re-appointment.

The observations of the Statutory Auditors on the financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 including the 

relevant notes to the financial statement are self-explanatory and therefore does not call for any further comments. The 

Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Report on Frauds, if any

During the year under review, no incidence of any fraud has occurred against the Company by its officers or employees. 

Neither the Audit Committee of the Board, nor the Board of the Company has received any report involving any fraud, from the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company. As such, there is nothing to report by the Board, as required under Section 134 (3) (ca) of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditors

Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, were appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company to examine the Cost 

Records and submit the Cost Audit Report. The Company has maintained the required cost accounting records as per the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and is in compliance therewith. The Cost Audit Report in Form CRA-4 

relating to the year ended 31 December 2016 was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the due date.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Rajesh Karunakaran 

& Co., Practicing Company Secretary (FCS 7441; CP No. 6581), Pune, was appointed to conduct a secretarial audit of the 

Company's Secretarial and related records for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Practicing Company Secretary has 

submitted the Report which is attached as Annexure D to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts which would impact the going concern status 

of the Company and its future operations.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has established a vigil mechanism (which incorporates a whistle blower policy) for Directors, employees and 

business associates, to report their genuine concerns. The details of the same are provided in the Report on Corporate 

Governance forming part of this Annual Report. The Policy is also available on the Company's website at URL: 

FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx.

Policies of the Company

Your Company has posted the following documents on its website at URL: FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx.

- Code of Conduct;

- Familiarisation Programme for the benefit of the Independent Directors;
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- Archival Policy;

- Policy for Determination of Material Events or Information;

- Policy of Preservation of Documents.

Risk Management Framework

The Board regularly monitors and reviews the risk management strategy of the Company and ensures the effectiveness of its 

implementation. Your Directors take all necessary steps towards mitigation of any elements of risk, which in their opinion, can 

impact the Company's survival.

All the identified risks are managed through review of business parameters by the Management, and the Board of Directors 

are informed of the risks and concerns.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Board of your Company has constituted a CSR Committee. As on 31 December 2017, the Committee comprises four 

Directors. A brief outline of the CSR Policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities 

during the year are set out in Annexure E of this Report in the prescribed format of the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at URL: 

FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Company has in place a Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All 

employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

Your Directors have to report that, during the year under review, one complaint of sexual harassment was received by it from 

the ICC which was disposed of within the stipulated time. There are no pending complaints as at the end of the under review.
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Annexure A

FORM NO. MGT - 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as at the financial year ended 31 December 2017
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN L24294PN1958PLC011052

ii) Registration Date 22-03-1958

iii) Name of the Company FOSECO INDIA LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares

v) Address of the Registered Office Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, Taluka Shirur, Pune - 412208

and contact details Phone : +91 2137 668100

vi) Whether Listed Company Yes

vii) Name, Address and contact details Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

of Registrar and Transfer Agent Block 202, 2nd Floor, Akshay Complex, Off Dhole Patil Road,

Pune - 411001

Phone : +91 20 26160084 / 26161629

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

Sl. 
No

Name and Description of main products / services
NIC Code of the Product / 

service
% to total turnover of the 

company

1 Manufacturer of Foundry Chemicals & Fluxes 0108 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SL. 
No.

Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN
Holding / Subsidiary 

/Associate
% of shares 

held
Applicable 

Section
1 Foseco Overseas Limited. Foreign Company Holding Company 58.00% Section 2(46) 

Fifth Floor, 265 Fleet Street Not Obtained
London EC4A 2AE, United Kingdom

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

 
Number of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year - As on 01-01-2017
Number of Shares held at the end of the 

year - As on 31-12-2017
% change

during 
the

year
Category of Shareholders Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual /HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Central Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Governments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Banks /Financial Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A) (1) : 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals 0.00 0.00

b) Other- Individuals 0.00 0.00

c) Bodies Corporates 4788845 0 4788845 74.98 4788845 0 4788845 74.98 0.00

d) Banks / Financial Institutions 0.00 0.00

e) Any other 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A) (2) : 4788845 0 4788845 74.98 4788845 0 4788845 74.98 0.00

Total Shareholding of Promoter (A)

(A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 4788845 0 4788845 74.98 4788845 0 4788845 74.98 0.00
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Number of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year - As on 01-01-2017
Number of Shares held at the end of the 

year - As on 31-12-2017
% change

during 
the

year
Category of Shareholders Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares Shares

B. Public Shareholding

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 1200 1200 0.02 0 0 0 0.00 -0.02

b) Banks / Financial Institutions 233 200 433 0.01 188 200 388 0.01 0.00

c) Central Government(s) - A/c. IEPF 0 0 0 0.00 23976 0 23976 0.38 0.38

d) State Government(s) 0 0.00 0 0.00

e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00

f) Insurance Companies 0 0.00 0 0.00

g) Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) 6946 0 6946 0.11 6946 0 6946 0.11 0.00

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00

i) Others (Specify) 0 0.00 0 0.00

Sub-total (B) (1) : 7179 1400 8579 0.13 31110 200 31310 0.49 0.36

(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporates 83621 1321 84942 1.33 92649 1221 93870 1.47 0.14

i) Indian 0 0.00 0 0.00

ii) Overseas 734829 0 734829 11.51 733226 0 733226 11.48 -0.03

b) Individuals 0 0.00 0 0.00

i) Individual shareholders holding 594100 90661 684761 10.72 535028 65641 600669 9.41 -1.32

nominal share capital upto Rs 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders holding 38600 0 38600 0.60 53950 0 53950 0.84 0.24

nominal share capital in excess of

Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) 45823 80 45903 0.72 84509 80 84589 1.32 0.61

Sub-total (B) (2) : 1496973 92062 1589035 24.88 1499362 66942 1566304 24.53 -0.36

Total Public Shareholding (B)

(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2) 1504152 93462 1597614 25.02 1530472 67142 1597614 25.02 0.00

C. Shares held by Custodian

for GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 6292997 93462 6386459 100 6319317 67142 6386459 100 0.00

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl 
No

 Shareholder's Name

Number of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year - As on 01-01-2017

 Number of Shares held at the end 
of the year - As on 31-12-2017  % change 

in 
 share 

holding 
 during the 

 year 

No of 
Shares

% of total
shares of 

the
Company

 % of shares 
Pledged/ 

 encumbered 
to total 
 shares 

 No of
 Shares 

% of total 
 shares of
 Company 

 % of shares 
Pledged/ 

 encumbered 
to total 
 shares 

1 Foseco Overseas Limited 3704219 58.00 0 3704219 58.00 0 0.00

2 Foseco (U K) Limited 540560 8.46 0 540560 8.46 0 0.00

3 Vesuvius Holdings Limited 544066 8.52 0 544066 8.52 0 0.00

TOTAL 4788845 74.98 0 4788845 74.98 0 0.00

(iii) Change in Promoter's Shareholding (please specify if there is no change)

Sl 
No

 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year - As on 01-01-2017

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

 At the beginning of the year 4788845 74.98  

 
Date wise increase / decrease in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.)

No Change in Shareholding during the Year

 At the end of the year  4788845 74.98
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Sl 
No Details of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year-As on 01-01-2017

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

1 Karibu Limited

a) At the Beginning of the Year 733226 11.48

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year 733226 11.48

2 Shree Capital Services Limited

a) At the Beginning of the Year 29579 0.46

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

31.03.2017 Purchase 1017 0.02 30596 0.48

c) At the end of the year 30596 0.48

3 Nozer Jasi Shroff

a) At the Beginning of the Year 25000 0.39

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year 25000 0.39

4 IEPF Authority - Ministry of Corporate Affairs

a) At the Beginning of the Year 0 0.00

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

15.12.2017 Transfer 136 0.00 136 0.00

28.12.2017 Transfer 23840 0.38 23976 0.38

c) At the end of the year 23976 0.38

5 Suchitra Ganesh Shanbag

a) At the Beginning of the Year 10000 0.16

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

27.10.2017 Purchase 2639 0.04 12639 0.20

03.11.2017 Purchase 361 0.01 13000 0.20

10.11.2017 Purchase 501 0.01 13501 0.21

17.11.2017 Purchase 1849 0.03 15350 0.24

c) At the end of the year 15350 0.24

6 V Srinivasa Rangan

a) At the Beginning of the Year 13600 0.21

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year 13600 0.21

7 Digvijay Finance Limited

a) At the Beginning of the Year 0 0.00

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

31.03.2017 Purchase 12578 0.20 12578 0.20

c) At the end of the year 12578 0.20

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders 
 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs )
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl 
No

Name of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year - As on 01-01-2017

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

1 Mr. Pradeep Mallick

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil

2 Mr. Glenn Cowie

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil

Sl 
No Details of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year-As on 01-01-2017

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

8 NBI Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

a) At the Beginning of the Year 8887 0.14

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year 8887 0.14

9 Geeta Arvind Joshi

a) At the Beginning of the Year 8766 0.14

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

29.12.2017 Sale -1000 -0.02 7766 0.12

c) At the end of the year 7766 0.12

10 Nomura Singapore Limited

a) At the Beginning of the Year 6946 0.11

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year 6946 0.11

11 Amit Ashok Thawani

a) At the Beginning of the Year 8602 0.13

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

02.06.2017 Sale -1120 -0.02 7482 0.12

09.06.2017 Sale -11 0.00 7471 0.12

27.10.2017 Sale -17 0.00 7454 0.12

10.11.2017 Sale -7454 -0.12 0 0.00

17.11.2017 Purchase 6540 0.10 6540 0.10

c) At the end of the year 6540 0.10

12 The Venktesh Co. Ltd.

a) At the Beginning of the Year 12578 0.20

b) Changes during the Year Date Reason

31.03.2017 Sale -12578 -0.20 0 0.00

c) At the end of the year 0 0.00
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V.  INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
excluding Deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the

Financial Year i.e. on 01.01.2017

i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil

 Total ( i + ii + iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sl 
No

Name of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year - As on 01-01-2017

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

3 Mr. Ajit Shah

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil

4 Mr. Sanjay Mathur

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil

5 Ms. Merryl Durrenbach

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil

6 Mrs. Indira Parikh

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil

7 Mr. R Umesh, CFO

a) At the Beginning of the Year 1 0.00

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year 1 0.00

8 Mr. Mahendra Kumar Dutia, Company Secretary

a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil

b) Changes during the Year No Change during the year

c) At the end of the year Nil Nil
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Wholetime Directors and/or Manager:

Secured Loans 
excluding Deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Change in Indebtedness during 

the Financial Year

 Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil

 Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil

Indebtedness at the end of the

Financial Year i.e as on 31.12.2017

i)Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil

 Total ( i + ii + iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sl 
No Particulars of Remuneration

Sanjay Mathur - 
Managing Director

Total 
Amount

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 186.37 186.37

 section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 27.86 27.86

 Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission - As a % of Profit

 - Others , specify

5 Others, please specify

TOTAL (A) 214.23 214.23

Ceiling as per the Act Being 5% of the Net Profit of the Company calculated as per Section 
198 of the Companies Act, 2013

242.70

B. Remuneration to other Directors : 

Particulars of Remuneration Independent Directors Total

Independent Directors Pradeep 
Mallick

Ajit Shah Indira Parikh Amount in 
Rs. Lakhs

 Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings 6.90 6.90 6.90  20.70 

 Commission 7.70  7.00 7.00  21.70 

 Others, please specify - 

Total(1) 14.60 13.90 13.90  42.40 

Other Non-Executive Directors Total 

Other Non-Executive Directors  Merryl 
Durrenbach 

 Glenn 
Cowie 

Amount in 
Rs. Lakhs

 Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings  - - - 

 Commission  - - - 

 Others, please specify - 

Total(2) - - - 

TOTAL (B) =(1 + 2) 14.60  13.90 13.90  42.40 

Total Managerial Remuneration 256.63

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Being 6% of the Net Profit of the Company calculated as per 
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

291.24
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel Total

R Umesh 
-CFO

Mahendra 
Kumar Dutia - 

Company 
Secretary

Amount in 
Rs. Lakhs

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in  63.12  24.93  88.05 

 section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the  11.07 2.11  13.18 

 Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission - As a % of Profit

       - Others, specify

5 Others, please specify

TOTAL  74.19  27.04  101.23 

VII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES  :

Type

Section of 
the

Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty,

Punishment,
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
RD/NCLT
COURT

Appeals
made if any

(give 
details)

A. COMPANY Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Place: Lonavala For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 1 February, 2018

Pradeep Mallick

Chairperson

DIN: 00061256
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Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

A) Conservation of energy

1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

 The Company has constantly been emphasising on optimisation of energy consumption in every possible area in 

its units. Various avenues are being explored at periodic interval and after careful analysis and planning 

measures are being initiated to minimise the consumption of energy by optimum utilisation of energy consuming 

equipment.

 During the year under review, the following measures were initiated/adopted for conservation and optimum 

utilisation of energy.

 • Usage of Flameproof LED lights in shop floors areas instead of conventional lights. Complete conversion of 

office lightings to LED.

 • Installed vent ducting for all air compressors to save energy by increasing the heat exchange efficiency.

 • Segregated several pumps to conserve water and installed small capacity pumps to reduce the energy 

consumption in utility area.

 • Additive mixing in thermic fluid heaters LDO fuel for proper atomization.

 • Installed energy efficient invertor scroll compressor based air conditioning for first floor of corporate office.

 • Use of regenerative battery-operated forklifts instead of diesel forklifts to save energy cost. 

2. Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of energy:

 • Signed agreement for 140 kWp Solar PV to be installed on BOT basis.

3. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

 • High bay LED lights for flammable areas on the shop floors in Resin Cell, Coating Cell and DG set area.

 • Energy efficient invertor scroll compressor based air conditioner for corporate office 1st floor.

 • Regenerative battery-operated forklifts.

 • Energy efficient burners for ovens.

B) Technology Absorption

 The following efforts are being made in technology absorption:

 Research & Development (R&D) 

 1. Specific areas in which R&D is carried out by the Company

The Company carried out R&D in the following areas:-

(a) Feeding Systems:

 • Developed new shape to improve productivity for ease of new applications in foundries.

(b) Coatings:

 • Absorbed technology for developing special coatings for automotive casting.

 • New coating formulations for energy optimisation.

(c) Binders:

 • New technology was used for developing special binder system for improving thermal properties of 

binder. 

 • Developed special self -set binders for Steel application with low Nitrogen.

ANNEXURE B
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 2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D

Customers continued to benefit from the Company's range of products designed to improve quality, productivity, 

efficiency and the environment, which translated into the following improvements:

Product Improvement: Improvements were carried out in Sand Binders which helped the customer to minimise 

the reworking in steel castings.

Cost Reduction: In case of Feeding system, the value engineering was done which helped to pass on some of 

the benefits to the customers.

Product Development: In case of Coatings, group product technology was improved which helped in improving 

the casting surface finish in steel castings.

Import substitution: In case of Coatings, alternative fillers are being tried with the aim to reduce dependence on 

imports.

 3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years) the following information may be 

furnished:

  (a) Details of the technology imported:

   Ferrous Coating – Manufacturing technology & formulation for special coatings to improve passage 

cleanliness

   Sand Binder  –   Manufacturing 

  (b) Year of Import: 

   Ferrous Coating  – 2 017

   Sand Binder  –   Additive technology for thermal reclamation 2017

  (c) Whether the technology has been fully absorbed:

   Ferrous coating  –   Yes

  (d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place and the reasons thereof:

   The technology has been fully absorbed

 4. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

  a) Capital : Nil (previous year Rs. 1.89 Lakhs)

  b) Revenue : Rs. 69.15 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 77.04 Lakhs)

  c) Total  : Rs. 69.15 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 78.93 Lakhs) 

C) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year

Current Year 
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Previous Year 
(in Rs. Lakhs)

a) Total Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 2,134.98 1,614.36

b) Total Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows 6,808.62 6,058.55

Place: Lonavala For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 1 February, 2018

Pradeep Mallick

Chairperson

DIN: 00061256



Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited

Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited24

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017:

ANNEXURE C

 Note: Non-Executive Directors other than the Independent Directors do not receive any remuneration, sitting 

fees or commission from the Company. Sitting fees and commission are paid to the Independent 

Directors only.

b) The median remuneration of the employees of the Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 was 

Rs. 6.71 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 6.45 Lakhs).

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year was 4.03% (previous year 

19.93%).

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 222 as on 31 December 2017 (previous year 221).

e) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

      The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

For Foseco India Limited

Place: Lonavala Pradeep Mallick

Date: 1 February, 2018 Chairperson 

 DIN: 00061256

Name of the Director / KMP Designation
Ratio of the remuneration 

of each Director and KMP to 
the median remuneration*

% increase in 
remuneration in the 

financial year

Pradeep Mallick Non-Executive Director  2.17 53.68%

Ajit Shah Non-Executive Director  2.07 49.46%

Merryl Durrenbach Non-Executive Director  -   -

Indira Parikh Non-Executive Director  2.07 49.46%

Glenn Allan Cowie Non-Executive Director  -   -

Sanjay Mathur Managing Director  31.91 4.32%

R Umesh Chief Financial Officer  11.05 -0.50%

Mahendra Kumar Dutia Company Secretary  4.03 2.15%
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Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to the provisions of Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors' 

Report for the year ended 31 December, 2017

Place: Lonavala For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 1 February, 2018

Pradeep Mallick

Chairperson

DIN: 00061256

Sr. 
No.

 Name  Designation 
 Gross

 Remuneration
 (Rs.)

 Qualifications 
 Experience

(Years)

 Date Of
 Commencement
 Of Employment

Age

 Last 
Employment 
held before 
joining this 
Company

Employed throughout the year

1  P M 
Deshpande 

 Process And 
Engineering 
Director - Foundry 

       124,01,159  B.E. (Mechanical), 
MMS (Operations) 

35 14-Nov-1985 58  Oil and Natural 
Gas Corporation 
of India 

2  Sanjay 
Mathur 

 Managing Director        214,22,755  B.E. (Chemical), 
Master of Marketing, 
Australia 

31 01-Apr-2007 53  Pennzoil Quaker 
State India Ltd. 

 Advanced 
Management 
Programme, Australia 

 DipFM, ACCA, UK, 
Master of Marketing, 
Australia 

Notes:

1 All appointments are / were contractual, as per the rules and conditions of the Company.

2 "Gross Remuneration" includes salary, bonus, allowances, leave travel allowance, reimbursement of medical expenses, 

employer's contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund, personal accident, GPA insurance premium and 

Mediclaim premium, wherever applicable.

3 As the future liability for the gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, 

the amount pertaining to the individual employee is not ascertainable and therefore, not included above.

4 None of the employees listed above is a relative of any Director of the Company.

5 None of the employees listed above were in receipt of remuneration in that year, which in the aggregate, was in excess of 

the remuneration drawn by the Managing Director and holds, either by himself or along with his spouse and dependent 

children, not less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company within the meaning of Rule 5(2)(iii) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014.

Particulars of Remuneration
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ANNEXURE D

STSECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  DECEMBER 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Foseco India Limited 
Gat No. 922 and 923,
Sanaswadi, Tal: Shirur,
District Pune – 412208
Maharashtra, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Foseco India Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 

thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
stperiod covering the financial year ended on 31  December 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 

also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
stthe financial year ended on 31  December 2017 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable for the Audit Period:-

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011;

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

 (d) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

  (i)  Manufacture Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules 1989 as amended;

  (ii) Environment Protection Act, 1986;

  (iii) Public Liability Insurance Act ,1991 as amended;

  (iv) Explosives Act 1889;

  (v) Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and the Packaged Commodities Rules 2011;

  (vi)  Food Safety Standards Act, 2006 and Rules 2011 with allied Rules and Regulations.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc. 

mentioned above.
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I further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors in respect of schedule of the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views if any are captured and recorded as part of the 

minutes. During the year under Audit no specific instances of dissent have been recorded in the Minutes.

I further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of compliance 

certificates issued by respective officials and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meetings that there are 

adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor 

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I report further that there are no specific events /major decisions or activities undertaken in pursuance of the above laws, rules 
stand regulations, guidelines, etc., during the financial year ended 31  December 2017, having a major bearing on the 

Company affairs.

 For RAJESH KARUNAKARAN & CO., 
stPune, 1  February 2018 COMPANY SECRETARIES

 RAJESH KARUNAKARAN
 COMPANY SECRETARY
 FCS No. 7441/CP No. 6581

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date, which is appended below and forms an integral part 

thereof.

To, 
The Members, 
Foseco India Limited
Gat No. 922 and 923, Sanaswadi, Tal: Shirur,
District Pune – 412208, Maharashtra, India

My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management Responsibility
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on audits.

Auditors Responsibility
1. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

fairness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that facts are 

reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 

opinion.

2. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

3. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis to the extent 

applicable to the Company.

Disclaimer
5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 For RAJESH KARUNAKARAN & CO., 
stPune, 1  February 2018 COMPANY SECRETARIES

 RAJESH KARUNAKARAN
 COMPANY SECRETARY
 FCS No. 7441/CP No. 6581
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the Financial Year ended 

31 December 2017

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken 

and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes:

The CSR Policy aims at:

• Adopting appropriate strategies and projects for the welfare of the people and society at large, who are the 

ultimate beneficiaries.

• Making the project sustainable i.e., taking all decisions keeping the society and the environment in mind.

• Practicing its corporate values through its commitment to grow in a socially and environmentally 

responsible way, while meeting the interests of its stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, 

employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and other organisations. The Company is 

responsible to continuously enhance shareholders' wealth; it is also committed to its other stakeholders to 

conduct its business in an accountable manner that is aimed at sustainable development and inclusive 

growth.

• Commit towards aligning with nature by adopting eco-friendly practices; pursue initiatives related to 

quality management, environment preservation by encouraging conservative / judicious use of natural 

resources and social awareness.

• Undertake proactive engagement with stakeholders to actively contribute to the socioeconomic 

development of the periphery/community in which it operates.

• Using environment friendly and safe processes in production.

• Create a positive footprint within the society by creating inclusive and enabling infrastructure/ 

environment for liveable communities.

The CSR Policy has been placed on the Company's website at: http://www.fosecoindia.com. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

 Name Designation

 Indira Parikh Chairperson

 Pradeep Mallick Member

 Ajit Shah Member

 Sanjay Mathur Member

3. Average net profit of the Company The average net profit of the Company for the last three 

 for last three financial years:  financial years as calculated in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 was 

Rs. 4668.13 Lakhs (previous year 3798.92 Lakhs)

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of   Rs. 93.36 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 75.98 Lakhs)

  the amount as in item 3 above):

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

 a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year Rs. 93.36 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 83.43 Lakhs).

 b) Amount unspent, if any   NIL (previous year Rs. 41.62 Lakhs)

 c) Manner in which the amount spent during   Details given below

     the financial year    

Annexure E



Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited

Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited29

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year   (Rs. In Lakhs)

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any 

part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board's Report 

 The actual amount spent by the Company on CSR activities during the year exceeded the prescribed limit.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee 

 The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the 

Company.

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Indira Parikh    Sanjay Mathur   

 Chairperson (CSR Committee)  Managing Director 

 

 Dated: 1 February, 2018

 Place:  Lonavala 

Sl.
No.

CSR Project or 
activity identified

Sector in 
which 
project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programmes  
1) Local area or 
other
2) Specify the 
State and district 
where Projects 
or Programmes 
were undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 
(budget) 
Project or 
Program-
meswise

Amount spent 
on the Projects 
or 
Programmes 
subheads:
1) Direct 
expenditure on 
projects or 
programmes
2) Overheads

Cumulative 
Expenditure 
up to the 
reporting 
period

Amount spent 
direct or 
through 
implementing 
agency

1. Girl Child Education 
Sponsorship

Girl Child 
Education

Talegaon 
Dhamdhere, 
Shirur, 
Maharashtra

5.38 5.38 5.38 Direct

2. Providing Basic 
Education needs

Child 
Education

Talegaon 
Dhamdhere, 
Shirur, 
Maharashtra

5.00 5.00 5.00 Rotary Club of 
Pune East 
Charitable Trust

3. Concretisation of 
Road

Environment 
& Society

Sanaswadi, Pune, 
Maharashtra

30.00 23.95 23.95 Local Gram 
Panchayat

4. Health Check-up 
camp for students 
of various schools

Healthcare Village schools in 
Pune, 
Maharashtra

1.50 1.50 1.50 Rotary Club of 
Poona 
Downtown, Pune

5. Providing Basic 
Education needs

Child 
Education

Various schools in 
Pune, 
Maharashtra

20.00 20.00 20.00 Rotary Club of 
Poona 
Downtown, Pune

6. Construction of 
toilet blocks in 
Schools

Health & 
Sanitation

Various schools in 
Pune, 
Maharashtra

10.00 10.00 10.00 Rotary Club of 
Poona 
Downtown, Pune

7. Building science 
laboratories in 
village schools

Child 
Education

Various schools in 
Pune, 
Maharashtra

8.00 8.00 8.00 Rotary Club of 
Poona 
Downtown, Pune

8. Innovative Digital 
Education Initiative 
- Providing E-
Learning, E-Library, 
Programmes for 
visually challenged 
students

Child 
Education

Talegaon 
Dhamdhere, 
Shirur, 
Maharashtra

20.80 20.80 20.80 Rotary Club of 
Pune East 
Charitable Trust

Total 100.68 94.27 94.27
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Foseco's Philosophy

Foseco strives to adopt the highest standards of excellence 

in Corporate Governance. The Company has consistently 

practiced good Corporate Governance norms for the 

efficient conduct of its business and meeting its obligations 

towards all its stakeholders viz., the shareholders, 

customers, employees and the community in which the 

Company operates.

The Company has established procedures and systems to 

be fully compliant with the requirements stipulated by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The broad principles in relation 

to disclosures and obligations have been implemented in a 

manner so as to achieve the objectives of Corporate 

Governance.

The Company's Corporate Governance philosophy is 

reflected in the following key areas of the Company's 

approach to business and its stakeholders:

Nature and Role of the Board of Directors

The Company's Board comprises individuals with 

considerable experience and expertise across a range of 

disciplines including general management, business 

strategy, finance and accounting. All Board Members have 

a significant breadth of international business experience. 

The Board Members are fully aware of their roles and 

responsibilities in the discharge of the key functions. The 

Board Members strive to meet the expectations of 

operational transparency to stakeholders, whilst 

simultaneously maintaining confidentiality of information to 

the extent required.

Foseco's Vision

The Company's vision is to become:

• The preferred partner to the foundry industry 

providing the greatest value.

• A highly respected industry leader with which all 

stakeholders are proud to be associated.

Business Strategy

The Company's business strategy is to improve its 

customer's business performance:

• By being the partner providing the greatest value.

• Through a solutions partnering approach delivering 

improved foundry processes and casting quality.

• Based upon world-class proprietary technology, 

foundry process and product application expertise 

and excellence in customer service.

Foseco Values

All employees are committed to living the Company's 

values:

• Excellence

• Creativity

• Cooperation

• Reliability 

• Integrity

• Embracing Diversity

Integrity of Financial Reporting

The Company ensures that adequate controls are in place 

to provide accurate and timely disclosure on all material 

matters including the financial situation, performance, 

ownership and governance of the Company. The audit 

process is supervised by the Audit Committee of the Board 

and is undertaken by an independent firm of Chartered 

Accountants, accountable directly to the Audit Committee.

Rights of the Shareholders

Foseco believes in protecting the rights of the 

shareholders. It ensures adequate and timely disclosure of 

all information to the shareholders in compliance with the 

applicable laws. Shareholders are furnished with sufficient 

and timely information concerning the general meetings, 

issues to be discussed thereat, rules regarding holding and 

conducting the general meetings, opportunity to participate 

effectively and vote in general meetings, rules of the voting 

process, exercise of ownership rights and mechanism to 

address their grievances.  They are informed of all key 

decisions concerning fundamental corporate changes. The 

minority shareholders are made aware of their rights of 

protection from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, 

controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly. 

All shareholders are treated equitably. 

Report on Corporate Governance
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Role of the Stakeholders

The Company recognises the rights of its stakeholders and 

respects their rights which are established by law or 

through mutual agreements. The stakeholders are 

provided opportunity to obtain effective redressal for 

violation of their rights. They get access to relevant, 

sufficient and reliable information on a timely and regular 

basis enabling them to participate in corporate governance 

process. The Company has laid down an effective whistle 

blower policy enabling stakeholders, including employees 

to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or 

unethical practices.

Framework on Insider Trading

The Company's shares are listed on the BSE Limited and 

the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. With the view 

to preventing insider trading and abusive self-dealing in the 

securities of the Company, the Company has formulated a 

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading 

of the Company's securities by Insiders in accordance with 

the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

As a part of this Code, the Company's Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and designated employees are 

advised of the closure of the trading window for dealing / 

transacting in the Company's Equity Shares prior to 

the announcement of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual 

financial results of the Company, declaration of 

dividend and other price sensitive information. The Code of 

Conduct  is  avai lab le on the Company's  URL: 

FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx.

Investor Services

Performance measures have been established in respect 

of all investor related services. Results are monitored 

regularly and improvements made, wherever required.

Performance Measurement

Foseco places considerable importance on the 

measurement of performance of employees, the purpose 

being to support all employees and the organisation to 

perform to their peak potential. The process includes the 

regular and transparent review of the performance of all 

employees against agreed objectives and behaviour. 

Employee remuneration is strongly linked to individual and 

Company performance. Likewise, the commission paid to 

Independent Directors is linked to the performance of the 

Company.

Board of Directors

Composition and Category of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is an optimal 

combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 

Directors who have in-depth knowledge of business, in 

addition to the expertise in their areas of specialisation.

The Board of the Company comprises six Directors - One 

Executive Director and five Non-Executive Directors, of 

whom three are Independent Directors. Two of the Non-

Executive Directors are nominated by Foseco Overseas 

Limited, London, United Kingdom, as provided in the 

Articles of Association of the Company.  The current 

strength of the Board includes two Women Directors, out of 

which one is an Independent Director as required under 

applicable legislation. The Chairperson of the Board is a 

Non-Executive Independent Director.

Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31 December 

2017:

The background of each Director is summarised 

below:

(a) PRADEEP MALLICK (DIN: 00061256), 

Non-Execut ive  Chai rperson and 

Independent Director

 Mr. Pradeep Mallick, aged 75 years, is a Non-

Executive Independent Director on the Board of 

Foseco India Limited since 21 October 2011 and Non-

Executive Chairperson from 20 January 2012. He is a 

graduate Electrical Engineer B. Tech from IIT Madras, 

who honoured him with the Distinguished Alumnus 

Award. He is a 'Chartered Engineer', Fellow of the 

Institution of Engineering & Technology (FIET), 

London, and holds a Diploma in Business 

Management from UK. From 1967 to 1988, Mr. 

Pradeep Mallick worked with Crompton Greaves, Tata 

Exports, EMC and GENELEC in the field of Power 

Distribution & Power Transmission, primarily in 

managing large turnkey projects in India, Gulf, West 

Asia and North Africa. In 1988, he helped to establish 

Category No. of Directors

Promoter - Non-Executive Director 2

Executive Director 1

Non-Executive Independent Directors 3

Total 6



Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited

Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited32

the Finnish Company Wartsila in India as a greenfield 

project and led the Company as its Managing Director 

for 15 years till 2003. He was conferred Knight First 

Class of the Order of the White Rose of Finland by the 

President of Finland. He is a Past Chairman of 

Confederation of Indian Industry (Western region) and 

a Past President of the Bombay Chamber of 

Commerce & Industry. He has served on the Boards of 

several Companies as a professional Independent 

Non-Executive Director. He is a Strategic Adviser cum 

Sounding Board to CEOs and an Executive 

Coach/Mentor to Corporate Executives, focusing on 

Leadership Development.

 Mr. Pradeep Mallick is the Chairperson of the 

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Board of 

the Company and also a Member of the Board's Audit 

Committee, Corporate Social Responsibil i ty 

Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee.

 He does not hold any shares in the Company.

(b) SANJAY MATHUR (DIN: 00029858), 

Managing Director

 Mr. Sanjay Mathur, aged 53 years, is Managing 

Director of the Company since 1 April 2007. He was re-

appointed as Managing Director for a period of three 

years from 1 April 2016. He is a Bachelor of 

Engineering (Chemical) from Punjab University, 

Chandigarh and has a lso done Advanced 

Management Programme from Melbourne Business 

School, Master of Marketing from Monash University, 

Australia and holds a Diploma in Financial 

Management (Dip FM) from ACCA, U.K. Mr. Sanjay 

Mathur has undergone numerous leadership and 

management development training programmes 

during his career. He has a wide-ranging experience 

across various functions and has worked with J.K. 

Synthetics Ltd, Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 

and the Shell Group. He was the Supply Chain & 

Industrial Sales Manager and General Manager 

(acting) of a Shell JV in the Middle East between 1998 

and 2003. In 2003, Mr. Sanjay Mathur took over as 

Managing Director of Pennzoil-Quaker State India 

Limited (Pennzoil), Mumbai after its acquisition by 

Shell in October 2002.

 Mr. Sanjay Mathur is a Member of the Stakeholders' 

Relationship Committee and the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee of the Board of the 

Company. Although he is not a Member of the Audit 

Committee, he attends all the Meetings as he is a 

permanent invitee to these Meetings.

 He does not hold any shares in the Company.

(c) AJIT SHAH (DIN: 02396765), Non-

Executive Independent Director

 Mr. Ajit Shah, aged 71 years, is a Non-Executive 

Independent Director on the Board of Foseco India 

Limited since 17 October 2013. Mr. Ajit Shah is an 

eminent Chartered Accountant in practice since 1971. 

He is a Senior Partner at M. A. Parikh & Co., a firm of 

Chartered Accountants at Mumbai.

 Mr. Ajit Shah specialises in the field of Audits and 

Assurances, domestic and international transfer 

pricing, valuation and consultancy in the field of 

finance and taxation. He is associated as consultant 

with well-known multinational groups like Merck, 

Germany, WPP Group, UK, American President 

Lines, Singapore, Mitsui OKS Lines, Japan and 

certain Tata Group of Companies.

 Mr. Ajit Shah is the Chairperson of the Board's Audit 

Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Company and also a Member each 

of the Board's Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

and the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

 He does not hold any shares in the Company.

(d) GLENN ALLAN COWIE (DIN: 07163534), 

Non-Executive Director

 Mr. Glenn Allan Cowie, aged 56 years, is a Non-

Executive and Non-Independent Director on the 

Board of the Company, who was appointed as a 

Director of the Company on 24 April 2015.

 Mr. Glenn Allan Cowie is a South African national and 

a British citizen and currently resides in Ohio USA, 

serving as the President – Foundry Divisions of 

Vesuvius plc. He is associated with the Vesuvius 

Group since the last 35 years.

 Mr. Cowie was appointed President Foundry in 

November 2014, having delivered significant change 

in business structure and performance as President 

Advanced Refractories during the prior three years. 

He started his career in Foseco South Africa in 1981, 

where he held several technical and sales positions in 

both the Foundry and Steel Divisions, before 

becoming the Chief Executive Sub Saharan Africa. Mr. 
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Cowie was transferred to the UK in an international 

Strategic Growth Initiative role and shortly thereafter 

was promoted to Area Director Northern Europe, 

based in Borken, Germany. Following a two-year 

period with Fosbel, he returned to Foseco in 2008 as 

Vice President Foundry NAFTA, and subsequently the 

Americas. He is a Diploma Engineer in Metallurgical 

Engineering. 

 Glenn does not hold Directorship in any other public 

Company in India except Foseco India Limited. He is a 

Member each of the Board's Stakeholders' 

Relationship Committee and the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee.

 He does not hold any shares in the Company.

(e)  MERRYL FRANCE DURRENBACH (DIN: 

06920690), Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Merryl France Durrenbach, a French national, 

aged 43 years, was appointed on 21 July 2014 as a 

Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company. 

She graduated from the Paris Institute Superior of 

Management with a Masters Degree in Finance & 

Management. She is Head of Internal Audit for 

Vesuvius plc. She has 16 years' experience in external 

/ internal audit and risk assurance, gained in the 

Automotive, Oil & Gas, Plastic & Paper Packaging and 

Services. In her previous role, Merryl has set-up and 

developed from a zero base, a strong internal audit 

team, and established robust audit processes 

globally, supporting all areas of the business to deliver 

improvements and mitigate risks. That audit team was 

recognised as one of the best for UK public 

companies.

 Ms. Durrenbach does not hold Directorship in any 

other public Company in India except Foseco India 

Limited. She is a Member each of the Board's Audit 

Committee and the Stakeholders' Relationship 

Committee.

 She does not hold any shares in the Company.

(f) INDIRA PARIKH (DIN: 00143801), Non-

Executive Independent Director

 Mrs. Indira Parikh, aged 74 years, is a Non-Executive 

Independent Director on the Board of Foseco India 

Limited since 21 July 2014.

 Mrs. Indira Parikh has done M.Ed. from University of 

Rochester, New York USA and the Doctorate from 

Gujarat University. She was a faculty at IIM-

Ahmedabad for over 30 years and Dean from 2002 to 

2005. She has taught at INSEAD, Fontainebleau 

(France) and Texas A&M University. She has held 

various academic positions at IIMA.

 She has specialised in organisation development and 

design, and institution building. She has designed and 

offered management and leadership development 

programs in public sector, private sector and 

multinational organisations. She has been a 

consultant to various national and international 

organisations. Mrs. Parikh has travelled extensively 

on assignments across the globe. 

 Mrs. Indira Parikh was the Founder President of 

FLAME. She was involved in creating the academic 

vision and shaping FLAME. She has conceptualised 

the Centre for Organizational Growth and Excellence 

(COGE) with its focus on thresholds of life, lifelong 

learning, development and growth. The focus of 

COGE is on transformation from entry to career 

transition at the end of working life. All the 

programmes focus on transformation of individuals, 

groups and institution's life, role and identity. 

 She has been honoured with several life time 

ach ievement  awards  bo th  na t iona l l y  and 

internationally. 

 Mrs. Indira Parikh is the Chairperson of the Corporate 

Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of the 

Company and also a Member of the Board's Audit 

Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

 She does not hold any shares in the Company.

 None of the Directors of the Company are related 

to each other.

Disclosure of Directors' and Others Interest 

in Transactions with the Company

None of the Directors', Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management, whether they, directly, indirectly or on 

behalf of third parties, have had any material interest in any 

transaction or matter directly affecting the Company 

pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 4(2)(f) of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations.

However, some commercial transactions have taken place 

with some of the Companies where Foseco Non-Executive 

Directors also hold Directorships. Such transactions have 

taken place only at arm's length basis and in the ordinary 

course of business, which have been disclosed to the 
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Board and entered in the Register of Contracts and 

approved by the Board in accordance with the 

requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations.

Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company fully meet the 

requirements laid down under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The Company has received a 

declaration from each of the Independent Directors 

confirming compliance with the criteria of independence as 

laid down under this Regulation as-well-as Section 149(6) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. 

As mandated by the Regulation:

 all the Independent Directors, in the opinion of the 

Board of Directors, are persons of integrity and 

possesses relevant expertise and experience;

 none of the Independent Directors are or were 

promoter of the Company or its Holding, Subsidiary or 

Associate Company;

 none of the Independent Directors are related to 

Promoters or Directors in the Company, its Holding, 

Subsidiary or Associate Company;

 apart from receiving Director's remuneration, the 

Independent Directors of the Company do not have or 

had any material pecuniary relationship with the 

Company, its Holding, Subsidiary or Associate 

Company, or their Promoters, or Directors, during the 

two immediately preceding financial years or during 

the current financial year;

 none of the relatives of the Independent Directors has 

or have had pecuniary relationship or transaction with 

the Company, its Holding, Subsidiary or Associate 

Company, or their Promoters, or Directors, 

amounting to two per cent or more of its gross 

turnover or total income of fifty lakh rupees or such 

higher amount as may be prescribed from time to 

time, whichever is lower, during the two immediately 

preceding financial years or during the current 

financial year;

 neither the Independent Directors themselves nor 

any of their relative(s) —  

(i) holds or have held the position of a key 

managerial personnel or is or have been an 

employee of the Company or its Holding, 

Subsidiary or Associate Company in any of the 

three financial years immediately preceding the 

financial year in which they are proposed to be 

appointed;

(ii) is or have been an employee or proprietor or a 

partner, in any of the three financial years 

immediately preceding the financial year in 

which they are proposed to be appointed, of —

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in 

practice or cost auditors of the Company or 

its Holding, Subsidiary or Associate 

Company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or 

had any transaction with the Company, its 

Holding, Subsidiary or Associate Company 

amounting to ten per cent or more of the 

gross turnover of such firm; 

(iii)   holds together with their relatives two per cent or 

more of the total voting power of the company; or  

(iv)  is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever 

name called, of any non-profit organisation that 

receives twenty-five per cent or more of its 

receipts or corpus from the Company, any of its 

Promoters, Directors or its Holding, Subsidiary 

or Associate Company or that holds two per cent 

or more of the total voting power of the 

Company;  

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or 

customer or a lessor or lessee of the Company;

 all the Independent Directors possesses appropriate 

skills, experience and knowledge in one or more 

fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, 

administration, research, corporate governance, 

technical operations or other disciplines related to the 

Company's business.

 the Independent Directors of the Company are not 

less than 21 years of age. 
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Tenure of Independent Directors

The tenure of the Independent Directors is fixed in 

accordance with the requirements laid down in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and clarifications / circulars issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in this regard, from time to 

time. Apart from the above, the Company policy requires 

the Board Members to retire at the AGM following their 75th 

birthday.

In compliance with the Company Policy, Pradeep Mallick, a 

Non-Executive Independent Director will retire at the 

conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as 

he has attained the age of 75 years.

Separate meetings of the Independent 

Directors 

The Independent Directors held a Meeting on 1 February 

2018, without the attendance of Non-Independent 

Directors and members of the Management. All the 

Independent Directors were present at the Meeting, where 

they –

I. reviewed the performance of Non-Independent 

Directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the 

Company, taking into account the views of Managing 

Director and Non-Executive Directors;

Board and Committee Memberships

As mandated by Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, none of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 

ten (10) Committees and none is a Chairperson of more than five (5) Committees across all Public Limited Companies in 

which they are Directors. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them in 

other Companies. The table below gives the details of Directorships, Committee Memberships and Chairpersonships in all 

Indian Companies including Foseco India Limited, as on 31 December 2017.

The numbers shown below, excludes Directorships and Committee Memberships of Private Limited Companies, Foreign 

Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. For the purpose of determination of limit, the 

Chairpersonship and Membership of the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee alone has been 

considered.

A total of four Board Meetings were held during the year 2017 on the following dates: 8 February 2017, 26 April 2017, 27 July 

2017 and 11 November 2017. The maximum time gaps between any two Board Meetings was less than 120 days.

Composition of the Board and the Directorships held as on 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Name of the 
Director

Category

Number of
 Board 

Meetings 
attended 

during the 
year 2017

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM

Number of 
Directorships 
in all Public 

Limited 
Companies 
including 
Foseco

Number of 
Memberships 

in Audit / 
Stakeholder 

Committee(s) 
held in all 

Public Limited 
Companies 
including 
Foseco

Number of Post 
of 

Chairpersonships 
in Audit / 

Stakeholder 
Committee(s) 

held in all Public 
Limited 

Companies 
including Foseco

Pradeep Mallick        
(DIN: 00061256)

Chairperson,
Independent, 
Non-Executive

4 Yes 2 4 2

Sanjay Mathur          
(DIN: 00029858)

Managing 
Director

4 Yes 1 1 --

Ajit Shah
(DIN: 02396765)

Independent, 
Non-Executive

4 Yes 2 3 2

Glenn Allan Cowie       
(DIN: 07163534)

Non 
Independent, 
Non-Executive

3 No 1 1 --

Indira Parikh                
(DIN: 00143801)

Independent, 
Non-Executive

4 No 6 5 --

Merryl France 
Durrenbach                
(DIN: 06920690)

Non 
Independent, 
Non-Executive

2 Yes 1 2 --
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iii. assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between the Company Management and 

the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 

and reasonably perform their duties.

The Independent Directors hold an unanimous opinion that 

the Non-Independent Directors bring with them decades of 

experience in Business and that their knowledge and 

experience are found invaluable to the Company. They are 

highly knowledgeable of the Group's global and regional 

operations and possess expertise of the Company's 

products as well as in their respective fields. They are also 

found to be highly engaging, focused, committed and 

participative, and possess good listening skills. The senior 

Director is highly business-minded and observant, yet 

amiable and fun-loving.

The Chairperson provides effective leadership to the 

Board, encourages active engagement, participation and 

discussion by all Members and communicates effectively. 

He is a visionary, extra-ordinarily committed and perceived 

to be meticulous, caring and well prepared for the 

meetings. He is an active listener and provides meaningful 

contribution for development of business and its strategic 

planning.

The information provided by the Company Management is 

complete, of high quality and furnished with full disclosure 

in a professional and timely manner.

Familiarisation programme for Independent 

Directors

Whenever any person joins the Board of the Company as 

an Independent Director, an induction programme is 

arranged for him / her wherein he / she is familiarised with 

the Company, their roles, rights and responsibilities in the 

Company, the Code of Conduct and Ethics to be adhered 

to, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, 

business model of the Company, meeting with the senior 

management team members, etc. The Company 

undertakes various measures to update the Directors, from 

time to time, of any significant changes in the ongoing 

events and development relating to the Company.

The Company also undertakes various programmes to 

update the Directors, from time to time, of any significant 

changes in the ongoing events and development relating to 

the Company.

The details of such familiarisation programmes can be 

v i e w e d  o n  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s  w e b s i t e  a t  U R L : 

www.fosecoindia.com/ View/policies.aspx.

Meetings of the Board

Frequency: The Board meets at least once a quarter to 

review the quarterly results and other items of the Agenda. 

Whenever necessary, additional meetings are held. In case 

of business exigencies or urgency of matters, Resolutions 

are passed by circulation, as permitted by law, which is 

confirmed in the next Board / Committee Meeting. The 

Company effectively uses video conferencing facility to 

enable the participation of Directors who may not be able to 

attend physically due to some exigencies.

Meetings Calendar: 

The probable dates of the Board / Committee Meetings for 

the forthcoming year are decided well in advance in order to 

facilitate and assist the Directors to plan their schedules for 

the Meetings. The indicative annual calendar of the 

Meetings forms part of this Report.

Board Meeting Location: 

The location of the Board / Committee Meetings is informed 

well in advance to all the Directors, to facilitate their 

attendance.

Notice and Agendas distributed in advance: 

The Company's Board / Committees are presented with 

detailed notes, alongwith the agenda papers, well in 

advance of the Meeting. The Agendas for the Board / 

Committee Meetings is set by the Company Secretary in 

consultation with the Chairperson of the Board / 

Committees. All material information is incorporated in the 

Agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions 

at the Meeting. Where it is not practical to attach any 

document to the Agenda, the same is tabled before the 

Meeting with specific reference to this effect in the Agenda. 

In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or 

supplementary items on the Agenda are permitted. The 

Board periodically reviews compliance reports of laws 

applicable to the Company, prepared and placed before the 

Board by the Management.

Other Matters: 

The senior management team of the Company is advised 

to schedule its work plans in advance, particularly with 

regard to matters requiring discussions / decision with the 

Board / Committee Members.

Presentations by Management: 

The Board / Committee is given presentations, wherever 

practicable covering health, safety and environment, 

finance, sales, marketing, major business segments and 

operations of the Company, global business environment 

including business opportunities, business strategy, risk 

management practices and operating performance of the 

Company before taking on record the financial results of the 

Company.
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Access to employees: 

The Directors are provided free access to officers and 

employees of the Company. Whenever any need arises, 

the Board / Committee Members are at liberty to invite the 

personnel whose presence and expertise would help the 

Board to have a full understanding of matters being 

considered.

Information Placed Before the Board / 

Committees:

Among others, information placed before the Board / 

Committees includes:

Ÿ  Annual operating plans of businesses and budgets and 

any updates thereof.

Ÿ Capital budgets and any updates thereof.

Ÿ Quarterly Results of the Company including its 

operating divisions.

Ÿ Minutes of the Meetings of the Board and all 

Committees of the Board.

Ÿ The information on recruitment and remuneration of 

senior officers just below the Board level, including the 

appointment or removal, if any, of Chief Financial Officer 

and Company Secretary.

Ÿ Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty 

notices, which are materially important.

Ÿ Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any 

material effluent or pollution problems.

Ÿ Any material default in financial obligations to and by the 

Company or substantial non-payment for goods sold by 

the Company.

Ÿ Any issue, which involves possible public or product 

liability claims of substantial nature, including any 

judgement or order, which may have passed strictures 

on the conduct of the Company or taken an adverse 

view regarding another enterprise that can have 

negative implications on the Company.

Ÿ Transactions that involve substantial payment towards 

royalty, goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property.

Ÿ Significant labour problems and their proposed 

solutions. Any significant development in human 

resources / industrial relations front, as and when it 

occurs.

Ÿ Making of loans and investments of surplus funds. 

Ÿ General notices of interests of Directors.

Ÿ Formation / Reconstitution of Board Committees.

Ÿ Appointment, remuneration and resignation of 

Directors.

Ÿ Dividend declaration.

Ÿ Significant changes in accounting policies and internal 

controls.

Ÿ Sale of investments, assets which are material in nature 

and not in the normal course of business.

Ÿ Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and 

the steps taken by management to limit the risks of 

adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

Ÿ Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing 

requirements and shareholders' service, such as non-

payment of dividend, delay in share transfer, if any, etc., 

and steps taken by company to rectify instances of non-

compliances, if any.

Ÿ Declarations submitted by Independent Directors at the 

time of appointment and also annually.

Ÿ Appointment of and fixing of remuneration of the 

Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee.

Ÿ Annual financial results of the Company, Auditors' 

Report, Directors' Report, Corporate Governance 

Report etc.

Ÿ Compliance Certificates for all the laws as applicable to 

the Company.

Minutes of the Meetings: 

The draft Minutes of the proceedings of the Meetings are 

circulated amongst the Members of the Board / 

Committees. Comments and suggestions, if any, received 

from the Directors are incorporated in the Minutes, in 

consultation with the Chairperson. The Minutes are 

confirmed by the Members and signed by the Chairperson 

at the next Board / Committee Meetings. All Minutes of the 

Committee Meetings are placed before the Board Meeting 

for perusal and noting.

Post meeting follow-up mechanism: 

The Company has an effective post meeting follow-up 

review and reporting process for the decisions taken by the 

Board and Committee(s) thereof. The important decisions 

taken at the Board / Committee(s) Meetings which calls for 

actions to be taken are promptly initiated and where 

required communicated to the concerned departments / 

divisions. Periodical Action Taken Reports are also sent to 

all the Directors through e-mails between two Meetings on 

the action taken on previous pending points. 

Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Company's Code of Conduct and Ethics provides 

guidelines to be followed by all Members of the Board of 
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Directors and Senior Management to ensure the highest 

standards of professional conduct. Members of the Board 

of Directors and Senior Management have affirmed 

compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the 

year ended 31 December 2017 on behalf of themselves 

and to the extent that they are aware, on behalf of all 

employees reporting to them. A declaration signed by the 

Managing Director of the Company to this effect is 

contained at the end of this report.

The said Code can be viewed on the Company's website at 

URL: www.fosecoindia.com/ View/policies.aspx.

Committees of the Board

As on 31 December 2017, the Company had: Audit 

Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

The Board Committees are set up under the formal 

approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles 

which are considered to be performed by the Members of 

the respective Board Committees. The Company's 

guidelines relating to Board Meetings are applicable to 

Committee Meetings, as far as may be practicable. Each 

Committee has the authority to obtain at the Company's 

expense, outside legal and professional advice on any 

matters within its term of reference. The Controller of 

Accounts and Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of 

all the Committees.

The functioning of all the Committees of the Board of 

Directors is guided by a well-laid down terms of references, 

that has been framed keeping in view the requirements 

prescribed for such Board Committees under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All the Committees were re-constituted during the year. The 

details of these Committees are set out below.

1.  AUDIT COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee reviews with Management, the 

Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors all aspects 

of the financial results, effectiveness of internal audit 

processes, taxation matters and the Company's risk 

management strategy.

Composition

The Audit Committee comprises 4 Members, three of 

whom are Non-Executive Independent Directors – Mr. 

Ajit Shah, Mr. Pradeep Mallick and Mrs. Indira Parikh 

and one is Non-Executive Non-Independent Director – 

Mrs. Merryl France Durrenbach.

The Chairperson Mr. Ajit Shah, Chartered Accountant, 

has considerable financial expertise and experience. 

The Managing Director, the Chief Financial Officer, the 

Statutory Auditor and the Internal Auditor are 

permanent invitees to the Committee. The Controller of 

Accounts and Company Secretary acts as a Secretary 

to the Committee.

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance of 

Directors

A total of four Audit Committee Meetings were held 

during the year 2017 on 8 February 2017, 26 April 

2017, 27 July 2017 and 11 November 2017. The 

maximum time gaps between any two Committee 

Meetings was less than 120 days.

Powers and Role of the Audit Committee inter-

alia includes the following:

 Conduct oversight of the Company's financial 

reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is 

correct, sufficient and credible;

 Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of 

the Company, including its annual and interim 

reports, preliminary results' announcements and 

any other formal announcement relating to its 

financial performance, reviewing significant 

financial reporting issues and judgments which they 

contain. The Committee shall also review summary 

financial statements, significant financial returns 

to regulators and any financial information 

contained in certain other documents, such as 

announcements of a price sensitive nature;

 Review where necessary:-

Ø the methods used to account for significant 

or unusual transactions where different 

approaches are possible;

Name of the 
Directors

Number of 
meetings held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings 
Attended

Ajit Shah 4 4

Pradeep Mallick 4 4

Indira Parikh 4 4

Merryl Durrenbach 4 2
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Ø whether the Company has followed appropriate 

accounting standards and made appropriate 

estimates and judgments, taking into account 

the view of the Statutory Auditor;

Ø the clarity of disclosure in the Company's 

financial reports and the context in which 

statements are made;

Ø all material information presented with the 

financial statements, such as the notes to the 

accounts;

Ø the CEO / CFO Certification.

 Review at each Meeting the statement of Related 

Party Transactions as defined in Accounting 

Standard 18 on the Related Party Transactions and 

the statement of contingent liabilities including 

those relating to Income and Commercial taxation.

 Approve Related Party Transactions.

 Approve subsequent modifications, if any, of the 

transactions of the Company with the related 

parties.

 Review, with the Management, the statement of 

uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), 

the statement of funds utilised for purposes other 

than those stated in the offer document / prospectus 

/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a 

public or rights issue, and making appropriate 

recommendations to the Board to take up steps in 

this matter;

 Review and monitor the Auditor's independence 

and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process;;

 Scrutinise inter-corporate loans and investments;

 Order valuation of undertakings or assets of the 

Company, wherever it is necessary;

 Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the 

payment to the shareholders (in case of non-

payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

 Review, with the Management, the annual financial 

statements and Auditor's Report thereon before 

submission to the Board for approval, with particular 

reference to:

Ø Matters required to be included in the Director's 

Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-

section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 

2013;

Ø Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 

practices and reasons for the same;

Ø Major accounting entries involving estimates 

based on the exercise of judgment by 

management;

Ø Significant adjustments made in the financial 

statements arising out of audit findings;

Ø Compliance with listing and other legal 

requirements relating to financial statements;

Ø Disclosure of any related party transactions;

Ø Qualification(s) / Modified Opinion(s) in the draft 

audit report;

Ø The going concern assumption;

Ø Compliance with accounting standards.

 Review with the management and recommend for 

Board approval the quarterly financial statements 

after having reviewed the limited review process 

with the Statutory Auditors.

 Approve the appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-

time Finance Director or any other person heading 

the finance function or discharging that function) 

after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;

 Carry out any other function as is mentioned in the 

terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

 Evaluate the Internal  Contro ls  and Risk 

Management Systems.

 Review the effectiveness and adequacy of the 

Internal audit functions and processes including the 

performance of the Internal Auditors.

 Formulate the scope, functioning, periodicity and 

methodology for conducting the internal audit, in 

consultation with the Internal Auditors.

 Consider and make recommendations to the Board, 

the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, 

the replacement or removal of the Company's 

Statutory Auditors, subject to the approval of the 

shareholder at the Annual General Meeting;

 Propose to the Board, the Statutory Auditors 

remuneration having regard to the level of fees 

which is appropriate to enable an adequate audit to 

be conducted, subject to the approval of the 
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shareholders at the Annual General Meeting;

 Recommend to the Board regarding the approval of 

the Statutory Auditors terms of appointment, 

including any engagement letter issued at the start 

of each audit and the scope of the audit;

 Assess  annua l l y  the  S ta tu to ry  Aud i to rs 

independence and objectivity taking into account 

relevant professional and regulatory requirements 

and the relationship with the Auditor as a whole, 

including the provision of any non-audit services;

 Approve the payment to the Statutory Auditors for 

any other services rendered by them;

 Monitor the Auditors compliance with relevant 

ethical and professional guidelines including the 

rotation of audit partners;

 Assess annually the Auditor's qualifications, 

expertise and resources and the effectiveness of 

the audit process which shall include a report from 

the Statutory Auditor on their own Internal quality 

procedures;

 Review and approve the annual audit plan and 

ensure that it is consistent with the scope of the audit 

engagement;

 Review the findings of the audit and limited reviews 

with the Statutory Auditors. This shall include but not 

be limited to, the following;

Ø A discussion of any major issues which arise 

during the audit or limited review;

Ø Any errors identified during the audit or limited 

review.

 Review the Auditor's management letter and 

management's response.

 Discuss with Statutory Auditors before the audit 

commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area 

of concern;

 Review the overall effectiveness and adequacy of 

the statutory audit functions and processes 

including performance of the Statutory Auditors in 

terms of value addition.

 Implement and regularly review the policy on the 

rendering of the non-audit services by the Statutory 

Auditors.

 Review the Whistle-blower Policy and taking stock 

of any report from the Directors and employees on 

the same.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the risk 

management strategy of the Company to ensure the 

effectiveness of risk management policies and 

procedures.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 

COMMITTEE

 Terms of Reference

 The primary purpose of the Committee, among other 

things, is to determine and propose the following for 

Board's approval:-

i) identify persons who are qualified to become 

Directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management positions in accordance with the 

criteria laid down and recommend to the Board 

their appointment and removal;

ii) carry out evaluat ion of every Director 's 

performance along with the Board;

iii) f o rmu la te  t he  c r i t e r i a  f o r  de te rm in ing 

qua l i f i ca t i ons ,  pos i t i ve  a t t r i bu tes  and 

independence of a Director and recommend to the 

Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the 

Directors;

iv) formulate the criteria for performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors and the Board; 

v) devise a policy on Board diversity;

vi) the Members and Chairperson of Board 

Committees;

vii) eva lua te  the  leve l  and  compos i t ion  o f 

remuneration to be reasonable and sufficient to 

attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality 

required to run the Company successfully.

viii) ensure that relationship of remuneration to 

performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks;

Composition

The Committee comprises four Members – Mr. Ajit 

Shah as Chairperson, Mr. Pradeep Mallick and Mrs. 

Indira Parikh as Non-Executive Independent Directors 

and Mr. Glenn Cowie as Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Meetings and Attendance of Directors – 

During the year, three Meetings of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee were held on 7 February 

2017, 26 April 2017 and 27 July 2017. The attendance 

of the Members at these three Meetings is given below: 

Selection of Directors

Selection and appointment of Directors is done based 

on various criteria viz., Determining Qualifications, 

Positive Attributes & Independence of a Director and 

Policy for Board diversity. The criteria inter-alia 

includes, qualification in any professional discipline or 

proven track record of strong managerial capabilities; 

possessing knowledge and skills in one or more fields of 

sales, marketing, technical operations, research, 

accounting, finance, management, administration, 

corporate governance; possessing relevant experience 

at policy-making and at leadership position in large 

organisations; having high standards of integrity and 

probity etc. In case of Independent Directors, he/she 

must fulfill the criteria of independence attributes to 

bring independent judgment to Board's deliberations 

and decisions over and above other attributes. Woman 

member on the Board to be selected on merit.

Per formance  eva lua t ion  c r i te r ia  fo r 

Independent Directors (IDs)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid 

down the criteria for performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors. The framework of performance 

evaluation of the Independent Directors captures the 

following points:

A) Key attributes of the IDs that justify his / her 

extension / continuation on the Board of the 

Company;

B) Participation of the Directors in the Board 

proceedings and his /  her effect iveness, 

contribution at the Meetings, guidance / support to 

the Management;

The assessment to determine the key attributes of the 

Directors covers the following:

- ability and willingness to speak up

- ability to carry others

- ability to disagree, stand his/her ground

- displays independence of judgement

- focus on shareholder value creation 

- high governance standards

- is well informed of the agenda and well 

prepared on the issues to be discussed 

thereat

The Board of Directors (excluding the Director being 

evaluated) had evaluated the performance of all the 

Independent Directors on the Board and have 

determined to continue with the term of appointment of 

the Independent Directors.

All the Independent Directors have furnished a 

declaration that he / she meets the criteria of 

independence as laid down in Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

The required information of the Directors who are 

seeking appointment or re-appointment is set out in the 

annexure to the AGM Notice.

P e r f o r m a n c e  E v a l u a t i o n  o f  B o a r d , 

Committees and Directors

Based on the criteria laid down, the Board carried out 

the annual performance evaluation of Board, the 

Committees and the other Directors. Whereas at a 

separate meeting, Independent Directors evaluated the 

performance of the Non-Independent Director, the 

Board as a whole and of the Chairperson.

As per the criteria for evaluation of the Board, it covers: 

Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities by the 

Board, structure and composition of the Board aligning 

to the need and st rategy of  the Company; 

establishment and delineation of responsibilities to the 

Committees; effectiveness of Board processes, 

information and functioning; Board culture and 

dynamics; quality of relationship between the Board 

and the Management; efficacy of communication with 

the external stakeholders.

Performance evaluation criteria for Managing Director 

inter alia include: level of skill, knowledge and core 

competence; performance and achievement vis-à-vis 

budget and operating plans; Effectiveness towards 

ensuring statutory compliances; discharging 

Name of the 
Directors

Number of 
meetings held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings 
Attended

Ajit Shah 3 3

Pradeep Mallick 3 3

Glenn Cowie 3 2

Indira Parikh 3 3
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duties/responsibilities towards all stakeholders; 

reviewing/monitoring Executive management's 

performance, adherence to ethical standards of 

integrity & probity; employment of strategic perception 

and business acumen in critical matters etc.

Committees of the Board are evaluated for their 

performance based on: effectiveness in discharging 

duties and responsibilities as outlined in the charter, 

specifically satisfying itself on integrity of financial 

statements and financial reporting, management of 

enterprise risk, compliance with laws and regulations, 

sufficiency in addressing the objectives for which it is 

set up, among other things; adequacy of Committee's 

composition; effectiveness of the various Meetings 

based on frequency of the Meetings, agenda 

discussed, time allotted, adequacy of information 

provided etc., dynamism of Committees giving an idea 

to the Members on their role and responsibilities; quality 

of relationship of the various Committees with the Board 

and the Management showing high degree of 

responsiveness and providing strategic guidance / 

direction to the Board on various matters coming under 

Committee's purview etc.

Performance evaluation was done by rating the 

performance on each criteria on the scale of 1 to 5, 1 

being strongly disagree and 5 being strongly agree. 

Separate exercise was carried out for evaluation of 

each Director and category i.e. Independent Directors, 

Managing Director, Chairperson, the Board and the 

Committees. The Board expressed its satisfaction on 

the process as well as performance of all Directors, 

Committees and Board as a whole.

Remuneration Policy

(A) Managing Director

The remuneration paid / payable to the Managing 

Director is in accordance with the limits fixed by the 

Board and approved by the Shareholders. The total 

remuneration comprises f ixed component 

consisting of salary and perquisites in accordance 

with the Company's policy and a performance 

bonus linked to Company performance. Increase in 

fixed remuneration is dependent upon both the 

Managing Director 's  and the Company's 

performance and is assessed annually. The 

performance bonus is based on a set of stretch 

targets that reflect the overall financial performance 

of the Company each year.

The remuneration to Managing Director is fair and 

reasonable after taking into account, level of skill, 

knowledge and core competence of individual, 

functions, duties and responsibilities, Company's 

performance and achievements, compensation of 

peers and industry standard and other factors.

The Committee recommends periodic revision in 

the remuneration of Managing Director to the Board 

and the Board fixes his remuneration taking into 

consideration the above factors as also ceiling limits 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The 

same is subject to the approval of the Shareholders, 

wherever required.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, 

the Company has paid the following remuneration to 

the Managing Director:

The Managing Director has been re-appointed for a 

period of three years from 1 April, 2016 to 31 March, 

2019.  The contract with the Managing Director can 

be terminated by mutual agreement with no 

severance fees payable.

(B) Non-Executive Independent Directors

Non-Executive Independent Directors are paid 

sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee 

Meetings, plus the reimbursement directly related to 

the actual travel and out-of-pocket expenses, if any, 

incurred by them. Non-Executive Independent 

Directors receive commission, which in total does 

not exceed 1% of the net profits of the Company 

computed under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 

2013. The amount of commission is based on the 

overall financial performance of the Company and 

of the Board of Directors. 

Apart from the above, no other remuneration is paid 

to the Non-Executive Independent Directors. The 

amount paid / payable for the financial year ended 

31 December 2017 is summarised below:

Salary and bonus Rs. 186.37 lakhs

Total perquisites Rs.   27.86 lakhs

Total Rs. 214.23 lakhs

   Directors
Sitting Fees

(Rs. In lakhs)
Commission Payable

(Rs. In lakhs)

Pradeep Mallick 6.90 7.70

Ajit Shah 6.90 7.00

Indira Parikh 6.90 7.00
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The commission becomes due and payable only 

after the approval of the Annual Accounts by the 

Shareholders' at the Annual General Meeting held 

after the conclusion of the financial year.

3. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

(CSR) COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the CSR Committee are as 

under:

Ø Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR 

Policy.

Ø Recommend the amount of expenditure to be 

incurred on CSR activities.

Ø Institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for 

implementation of CSR projects or programs or 

activities undertaken by the Company.

Ø Monitor CSR policy from time to time.

Composition

The Committee comprises four Members, out of which 

three of them are Independent Directors – Mrs. Indira 

Parikh as the Chairperson, with Mr. Pradeep Mallick, 

Mr. Ajit Shah and Mr. Sanjay Mathur as the other 

Members. The Controller of Accounts and Company 

Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

CSR Committee Meetings and Attendance of 

Directors

During the year, one Meeting of the CSR Committee 

was held on 7 February 2017. The attendance of the 

Members at this Meeting is given below:  

CSR Policy

The CSR Policy is available on the website of the 

Company at URL: FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx.

4. STAKEHOLDERS'  RELATIONSHIP 

COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference

The Committee focuses primarily on monitoring and 

ensuring that the shareholder and investor services 

operate in an efficient manner and that all Stakeholders 

grievances / complaints are addressed promptly with 

the result that all issues are resolved rapidly and 

efficiently.

Composition

As on 31 December 2017, the Committee comprises six 

Members: Mr. Pradeep Mallick, a Non-Executive 

Independent Director as Chairperson, Mr. Ajit Shah, Mr. 

Glenn Cowie, Mrs. Merryl Durrenbach, Mrs. Indira 

Parikh and Mr. Sanjay Mathur as its Members. The 

Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary acts as 

a Secretary to the Committee.

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

Meetings and Attendance of Directors

A total of four Committee Meetings were held during the 

year 2017 on the following dates: 7 February 2017, 26 

April 2017, 27 July 2017 and 11 November 2017. The 

attendance of the Directors at these Meetings are as 

follows:

Compliance Officer

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Dutia, Company Secretary and 

Controller of Accounts is the Compliance Officer.

Name of the 
Directors

Number of 
meetings held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings 
Attended

Indira Parikh 1 1

Pradeep Mallick 1 1

Ajit Shah 1 1

Sanjay Mathur 1 1

Name of the 
Director

Number of 
meetings held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings 
Attended

Pradeep Mallick 4 4

Ajit Shah 4 4

Glenn Cowie 4 2

Indira Parikh 4 4

Merryl Durrenbach 4 2

Sanjay Mathur 4 4
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Analysis of Complaints – Received and 

Resolved during the year ended 31 December, 

2017

All complaints have been resolved to the satisfaction of 

shareholders.

General Body Meetings

Location, date and time of the Annual General 

Meeting held during the last 3 years and Special 

Resolutions passed thereat:

Special Resolution passed through Postal 

Ballot

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, no 

special resolution was put through by postal ballot.

Special Resolution proposed to be conducted 

through Postal Ballot and procedure therefor

No Resolution is proposed to be passed at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company to 

be held in April 2018, that is required to be conducted 

through postal ballot. Hence the procedure of postal 

ballot is not laid down.

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting

No Ext ra-Ord inary  Genera l  Meet ing o f  the 

Shareholders was held during the financial year ended 

31 December 2017.

Means of Communication

The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial 

Results are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges 

in accordance with the Regulation laid down therefor 

and are generally published in the Business Standard 

(in English Language – All India Editions) and Loksatta 

(in Marathi Language – Pune Edition). The results are 

p o s t e d  o n  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s  w e b s i t e 

www.fosecoindia.com, after its submission to the 

Stock Exchanges. These are available in a freely 

downloadable format.

The Annual Report, Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual 

Financial Results, Shareholding Pattern, Intimation of 

the Board Meetings and other statutory filings with the 

Stock Exchanges are posted through the filing system 

of the BSE Limited and NSE Electronic Application 

Processing System (NEAPS) portals.

All price sensitive information and matters which are 

material and relevant to the Shareholders are intimated 

to the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited, where the securities of the Company are 

listed.

General Shareholders Information

st61  Annual General Meeting

stThe 61  Annual General Meeting will be held on 

Tuesday, 24 April 2018 at the Registered Office of the 

Company at 1200 hours (IST).

Nature of 
Complaints

Opening 
Balance

Complaints 
Received 

During the 
Year

Received From

Closing 
Balance

Share 
Transfer 
Agents 

or Direct

SEBI 
/BSE / 
NSE

Non-receipt 
of dividend 
warrant 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Non-receipt 
of Share 
Certificate 

Nil 1 Nil 1 1

Non-receipt 
of Annual 
Report

Nil 1 Nil 1 1

Others Nil 1 Nil 1 1

Total Nil 3 Nil 3 3

Financial 
Year Ended

Date of 
the 

AGM
Time Location

Special Resolutions 
Passed

31 
December 
2016

27 
April 
2017

1200 
Hrs

At the 
Company's 
Registered 
Office at
Gat Nos. 922 
& 923, 
Sanaswadi, 
Taluka 
Shirur, Pune 
– 
412 208

NIL

31 
December 
2015

26 
April 
2016

1200
Hrs

- Do - NIL

31 
December, 
2014

27 
March, 
2015

1200
Hrs

- Do - Approval u/s., 197 
of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for 
payment of 
commission not 
exceeding 1% of 
the net profits of the 
Company to the 
Independent 
Directors of the 
Company, in each 
financial year over a 
period of five years 
commencing from 1 
January, 2015 and 
ending on 31 
December, 2019.
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Financial Year of the Company

The Company follows the calendar year as the financial 

year viz., From January to December of a year.

Financial Calendar (Tentative and subject to 

change)

Company Identification Number (CIN): 

CIN of the Company is L24294PN1958PLC011052.

Date of Closure of the Register of Members and 

Share Transfer Books of the Company: 

From Saturday, 14 April 2018 to Tuesday, 24 April 

2018 (both days inclusive) for determining the 

entitlement of the Shareholders to the payment of final 

dividend, if declared at the AGM.

Dividend Payment Date: 

Final dividend, if declared at the AGM, shall be 

paid/credited on or before Wednesday, 23 May 2018.

Stock Exchange Listing

Share Price

The Company's high and low prices recorded on 

the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited during the year ended 31 December 2017 

were:

(Source: Compiled from the data available from the 

BSE and NSE websites)

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (RTA):  

The RTA of the Company is Link Intime India Private 

Limited, Akshay Complex, Block 202, 2nd floor, Off 

Dhole Patil Road, Near Ganesh Mandir, Pune-411001.

Telephone Nos: +91 (020) 26160084, 26161629.

Email: pune@linkintime.co.in.

Website: www.linkintime.co.in.

Address for Correspondence:

i) For change of address and bank mandates:

 In cases of shares held in dematerialised form – 

Financial 
Reporting 2016

From To
Probable 
Date(s)

1st Quarter January March 
th4  week of April 

2018

2nd Quarter April June 
rd3  week of July 

2018

3rd Quarter July September 
th4  week of 

October 2018

4th Quarter October December 
th4  week of 

January 2019

Annual General 
Meeting for the 
financial year ending 
31 December 2018

April 2019

Stock 
Exchange

Stock Code
Listing Fees 
Paid Up to

ISIN

BSE Limited 500150 31.03.2018 INE519A01011

National Stock 
Exchange of 
India Limited

FOSECOIND 31.03.2018 INE519A01011

Month B S E N S E

Share Price Share Price

High 
(Rs.)

Low 
(Rs.)

High 
(Rs.)

Low
(Rs.)

Jan-17 1,375.00 1,260.00 1,375.00 1,248.00

Feb-17 1,435.00 1,300.00 1,440.00 1,300.00

Mar-17 1,368.00 1,287.00 1,368.00 1,299.00

Apr-17 1,477.00 1,347.00 1,660.00 1,339.00

May-17 1,452.00 1,323.00 1,469.00 1,320.00

Jun-17 1,424.00 1,310.00 1,399.00 1,316.00

Jul-17 1,547.00 1,339.00 1,550.00 1,350.00

Aug-17 1,423.00 1,305.00 1,408.00 1,307.00

Sep-17 1,421.00 1,282.00 1,387.00 1,300.00

Oct-17 1,395.00 1,290.00 1,420.00 1,292.00

Nov-17 1,594.00 1,367.00 1,595.00 1,356.00

Dec-17 2,336.00 1,451.00 2,340.00 1,447.00
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Shareholders should contact their respective 

Depository Participant.

 In cases of shares held in physical form – 

Shareholders should contact the Company's RTA – 

Link Intime India Private Limited.

ii) For dividends and other complaints:

 Shareholders should contact the Company's RTA – 

Link Intime India Private Limited.

iii) For any other queries, information and matters 

relating to investor relations:

 Shareholders should contact Mr. Mahendra Kumar 

Dutia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, 

Foseco India Limited, Gat Nos. 922 & 923, 

Sanaswadi, Taluka: Shirur, District Pune 412 208, 

Contact number: +91 (02137) 668126 (Direct), 

668100 (Board), +91 (02137) 668360 (Fax), E-mail 

ID: investor.grievance@foseco.com.

Share Transfer System

In order to expedite the process of transfer of securities, the 

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Board has 

delegated the powers severally to all the Directors and the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents. All routine transfers and 

transmissions of shares are processed within a period of 15 

days from the date of receipt of transfer documents 

provided the documents are complete in all respect.

Requests for dematerialisation of shares are processed 

within 15 days from the date of receipt if the documents are 

in order.

As per the requirement laid down in Regulation 40(9) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company has obtained 

half-yearly certificates from Practicing Company Secretary 

for due compliance of issuance of share certificates within 

the stipulated time limit and had filed the same with the 

Stock Exchanges.

As on 31 December 2017 there were no valid requests 

pending for transfer of shares.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

As required under Regulation 55A of SEBI (Depositories 

and Participants), Regulations, 1996, the Reconciliation of 

Share Capital on the total admitted capital with National 

Securities Depository Limited ("NSDL") and Central 

Depository Services (India) Ltd. ("CDSL") and in physical 

form for the 4 quarters in the financial year ended 

31 December 2017 was carried out by a Practicing 

Company Secretary whose reports were submitted with the 

Stock Exchanges, within the stipulated time-limit. The 

reports were also placed before the Board of Directors at its 

Meetings.

Shareholding Distribution

The distribution of shareholding as at 31 December 2017 is 

tabulated below:

The nature of shareholding is summarised below:

Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

Shares of the Company can be held and traded in 

electronic form. The Company has established connectivity 

Nominal Value of 
Shares

Number 
of 

Share-
holders

% of 
Total 

Share-
holders

Total Value 
of Shares

% of 
Total 

Shares
Value

Up to 5,000 6957 97.09 4496040 7.04

5,001 to 10,000 106 1.48 808640 1.27

10,001 to 20,000 53 0.74 747270 1.17

20,001 to 30,000 23 0.32 572790 0.90

30,001 to 1,00,000 16 0.23 808140 1.26

1,00,001 and above 10 0.14 56431710 88.36

Total 7165 100.00 63864590 100.00

Category 
Total Number 

of Shares
% of Total 

Shares

Foreign Promoters 4788845 74.98

Foreign Companies 733226 11.48

NRIs /OCBs/FIIs/FPIs 25741 0.40

IEPF Account 23976 0.38

Banks and FIs, Mutual Funds - -

Private Corporate Bodies 93870 1.47

Indian Public 720801 11.29

Total 6386459 100.00
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with both the depositories i.e., NSDL and CDSL. As on 31 

December 2017, approximately 98.95% of shares of the 

Company have been dematerialised. Shares of the 

Company are actively traded on the BSE Limited and the 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Outstanding GDRs /  ADRs /  Warrants / 

Convertible Instruments

The Company has not issued GDRs or ADRs. There are no 

outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments.

Equity Shares lying in the Suspense Account

In compliance with Para F of Schedule V to the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, the information relating to the equity 

shares lying in the suspense account is given hereunder:

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the 

rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

Plant Locations

The Company has two manufacturing sites. The address of 

its plants are given below:-

Pune - Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, Taluka: Shirur, 

District Pune 412 208,

Puducherry - Medium Scale Industrial Area, PIPDIC 

Industrial Estate, Mettupalayam, Puducherry 605 009

Disclosures

Related Party Transactions and Policy related 

thereto

There were no materially significant related party 

transactions with the Company's Promoters, Directors, 

Management or their relatives, which could have had a 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company. The 

Company does not have any subsidiary or associate. 

Transactions with related parties are entered into by the 

Company in the normal course of business and at arm's 

length. The details of transactions are periodically placed 

before the Audit Committee for review and approval. 

Members may refer to the notes to the accounts for details 

of related party transactions.

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy 

to regulate transactions between the Company and its 

Related Parties, in compliance with the applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the Rules framed 

thereunder including the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.  The 

policy has been placed on the website of the Company at 

URL: FosecoIndia/View/policies.aspx.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company has followed the treatment laid down in the 

Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India, in the preparation of 

financial statements.  There are no audit qualifications in 

the Company's financial statements for the year under 

review.

Compliance with Regulations

The Company has complied with the requirements of the 

Regulatory Authorities on Capital Markets. Neither has 

there been any instances of non-compliance by the 

Company on any matters related to the capital markets, nor 

has any penalty or stricture been imposed on the Company 

by the Regulatory Authorities or any statutory authority, on 

any matter related to capital markets, during the last three 

years.

Particulars
No. of 
Share-
holders

No. of 
Shares 

Outstanding

Aggregate number of 
shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the 
suspense account lying at the 
beginning of the year

2 140

Number of shareholders who 
approached the Company for 
transfer of shares from the 
suspense account during the 
year

-- --

Number of shareholders to 
whom shares were transferred 
from the suspense account 
during the year

-- --

Aggregate number of 
shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the 
suspense account lying at the 
end of the year

2 140
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Whistle-blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

In line with the best Corporate Governance practices, 

Foseco India Limited has put in place a system through 

which the Directors, employees and business associates 

may report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or 

suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of 

Conduct and Ethics without fear of reprisal. The Company 

has put in place a process by which employees and 

business associates have direct access to the Audit 

Committee Chairperson, Managing Director, Chairperson 

of the Board and Compliance Officer.

The Whistle-blower Policy is placed on the notice 

board of the Company, and its website at URL: 

FosecoIndia/View/policies .aspx.

Dividend Policy

Foseco's dividend policy is based on the belief that our 

shareholders should decide how best to utilise their funds 

retained in the Company that is surplus to the medium term 

cash requirements of the business. Therefore, the 

Company's dividend policy is to return to the shareholders 

that cash, which in the opinion of the Board, is in excess to 

the medium term cash requirements. In determining the 

future cash requirements of the business, the Board 

includes the following in its review:

• Working capital to support growth

• Capital investment to expand capacity and to 

maintain existing facilities

• Potential for acquisitions

• Possibility of contingent liabilities crystallising

• The projected business performance and internal 

cash generation

• Possible funding requirements

• Macro-economic and fiscal environment

• Contingency planning

Unclaimed Dividends

By virtue of the provision laid down under the Companies 

Act, 2013, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid / 

unclaimed for the period of seven years from the date of its 

transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, 

shall be required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central 

Government. Given below are the dates of declaration of 

dividend and corresponding dates when unpaid / 

unclaimed dividends are due for transfer to the IEPF:

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants 

are requested to write to the Company's Registrar and 

Transfer Agents viz., Link Intime India Private Limited and 

have them revalidated and encashed to avoid transfer to 

IEPF.

Year
Date of 

Declaration
Due Date for 

Transfer

2010 – Final 21-Apr-2011 26-May-2018

2011 - 1st interim 21-Apr-2011 26-May-2018

2011 - 2nd interim 22-Jul-2011 26-Aug-2018

2011 - 3rd interim 21-Oct-2011 25-Nov-2018

2011 – Final 25-Apr-2012 31-May-2019

2012 - 1st interim 25-Apr-2012 31-May-2019

2012 - 2nd interim 18-Jul-2012 23-Aug-2019

2012 - 3rd interim 23-Oct-2012 28-Nov-2019

2012 – Final 22-Apr-2013 27-May-2020

2013 - 1st interim 22-Apr-2013 27-May-2020

2013 - 2nd interim 14-Aug-2013 18-Sep-2020

2013 - 3rd interim 17-Oct-2013 21-Nov-2020

2013 – Final 22-Apr-2014 27-May-2021

2014 - 1st interim 09-May-2014 13-Jun-2021

2014 - 2nd interim 21-Jul-2014 25-Aug-2021

2014 - 3rd interim 14-Nov-2014 19-Dec-2021

2014 – Final 27-Mar-2015 01-May-2022

2015 - 1st interim 24-Apr-2015 29-May-2022

2015 - 2nd interim 22-Jul-2015 26-Aug-2022

2015 - 3rd interim 20-Oct-2015 24-Nov-2022

2015 – Final 26-Apr-2016 01-Jun-2023

2016 - 1st interim 20-Jul-2016 25-Aug-2023

2016 - 2nd interim 20-Oct-2016 25-Nov-2023

2016 - Final 27-Apr-2017 01-Jun-2024

2017 - 1st Interim 27-Jul-2017 31-Aug-2024

2017 - 2nd Interim 11-Nov-2017 16-Dec-2024
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Unclaimed Equity Shares

In compliance with the requirements laid down in Section 

124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 'Investor 

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 

Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016', the Company 

has transferred all equity shares in respect of which 

dividends had remained unpaid or unclaimed by the 

shareholders for seven consecutive years or more, to the 

Demat Account of the IEPF. However, the Shareholders are 

entitled to claim their shares including all the corporate 

benefits accruing on such shares, if any, from the IEPF 

Authority by submitting an online application in Form IEPF-

5 and sending a physical copy of the Form IEPF-5 duly 

signed by all the joint shareholders, if any, as per the 

specimen signature recorded with the Company along with 

requisite documents enumerated in the Form IEPF-5, to the 

Company's RTA. The Rules and Form IEPF-5, as 

prescribed, for claiming back the shares, are available on 

the website of the IEPF www.iepf.gov.in. It may please be 

noted that no claim shall lie against the Company in respect 

of share(s) transferred to IEPF pursuant to the said Rules. 

The details of the shareholders whose equity shares had 

been transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF is 

available on the website of the Company at URL: 

F o s e c o i n d i a . c o m / V i e w / I n f o r m a t i o n _ o n _ 

Transfer_of_Shares_to_IEPF.aspx.

Payment of Dividend etc.

The Company through its Registrar and Transfer Agents – 

Link Intime India Private Limited (RTA) uses the electronic 

mode of payment facility approved by the Reserve Bank of 

India, i.e., NACH/NEFT/ECS/Direct Remittance etc., for 

making payment of dividends and other cash benefits to the 

shareholders. 

As specified in Schedule I to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

the Company's RTA maintains the bank details of their 

investors as follows –

(a) For investors holding securities in dematerialised 

mode, by seeking the same from the depositories,

(b) For investors holding securities in physical mode, by 

updating bank details of the investors at their end.

In cases where either the bank details such as MICR, IFSC 

etc. that are required for making electronic payment are not 

available or the electronic payment instructions have failed 

or have been rejected by the Bank, the RTA issues 

'payable-at-par' warrants / cheques for making payments to 

the investors. The RTA mandatorily prints the bank account 

details of the investors on such payment instruments and in 

cases where the bank details of investors are not available, 

the address of the investor on such payment instructions 

are printed. Where the amount payable as dividend 

exceeds Rs. 1500, the 'payable-at-par' warrants or 

cheques are sent by speed post.

Members holding securities in physical form are requested 

to intimate any change in address, change of name, bank 

details viz., account number, name of the bank and branch, 

MICR, IFSC etc., to the Company's RTA for updating these 

details against their folios. Members holding securities in 

dematerialised form are requested to intimate such 

changes to their respective depository participants.

Nomination

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in 

physical form can nominate a person in whose name the 

shares shall be transferable in case of death of the 

registered shareholder. The nomination facility in respect of 

shares held in electronic form is also available with the 

depository participants as per the byelaws and business 

rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. Nomination forms are 

a v a i l a b l e  o n  t h e  w e b s i t e  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y 

www.fosecoindia.com, which can be used by the 

Members for the said purpose.

 

CEO / CFO Certificate

The Managing Director / CEO and the CFO have furnished 

a compliance certificate to the Board of Directors under 

Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations.

Detai ls  of  Compl iance wi th  Mandatory 

Requirements and adoption of Non-Mandatory 

Requirements

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory 

requirements of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Company has adopted following non-mandatory 
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requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

- A Non-Executive Chairperson is entitled to maintain a 

chairperson's office at the Company's expenses and 

also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in 

performance of his duties.

- During the year under review, there was no audit 

qualification in the Auditors' Report on the Company's 

financial statements.

- The Chairperson of the Company and the Managing 

Director / CEO are different persons.

- The Internal Auditor of the Company is a permanent 

invitee to the Audit Committee Meeting and regularly 

attend the Meetings for reporting their findings of the 

internal audit to the Audit Committee Members.

Policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries

Your Company does not have any subsidiary / subsidiaries, 

therefore no policy was required to be framed in this regard.

Disclosure of commodity price risks and 

commodity hedging activities

The principal raw materials of the Company are zircon, 

phenol, innoculants etc.  These are procured from the 

domestic suppliers. Some of the raw materials are 

procured from the overseas markets as well. In case the 

raw materials prices undergo upward revision and / or the 

imported raw materials are exposed to foreign exchange 

rate fluctuations, the price differences are adequately 

covered in the selling price of the finished products. The 

Company does not indulge in any commodity hedging 

activities.

Compliance or otherwise of any requirement of 

Corporate Governance Report

The Company has complied with the requirements of the 

Corporate Governance and has made disclosures to the 

extent required and applicable to it, as stipulated in the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations. These are the following:-

- Sub-paras 2 to 10 of Para C of Schedule V;

- Regulations 17 to 27; and

- Regulation 46 (2) (b) to (I). 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY'S 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The Company has obtained a certificate from a practicing 

Company Secretary confirming compliance of the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Para E 

of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The 

Certificate is annexed to this Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Pradeep Mallick

Place: Lonavala Chairperson

Date:  1 February 2018 DIN: 00061256

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE

COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Para D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for all 

Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. The Code is available on the Company's website.

I further declare that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017, received from all the Board 

Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company, an affirmation of compliance with the Code, as applicable to 

them.

For Foseco India Limited
Place: Lonavala Sanjay Mathur

Date: 1 February, 2018 Managing Director & CEO
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Compliance of Corporate Governance 

requirements - Certificate

To:

The Members of Foseco India Limited

Gat No. 922 and 923,

Sanaswadi, Tal: Shirur, 

District Pune – 412208

Maharashtra, India

I have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Foseco India Limited, for the year ended on 31st 

December 2017, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited 

to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to us, I certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions as specified in chapter IV of Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to Listing 

Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RAJESH KARUNAKARAN & CO., 

COMPANY SECRETARIES

RAJESH KARUNAKARAN

COMPANY SECRETARY

FCS No. 7441/CP No. 6581

204 Pragati Towers, Opposite Shivajinagar S.T. Stand.,

Shivajinagar, Pune – 411 005 

Tel.No.: 020- 3022 4146, Mob - 9890320874

stPune, 1  February 2018



Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited

Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited52

INTRODUCTION

FOSECO is the Foundry Technologies Division of Vesuvius Group plc which is a global market player. Vesuvius Group is 

engaged in supporting the development of global steel and foundry manufacturing processes with new technologies. It has 

manufacturing capabilities in all the main steel and foundry markets in the world and is a leader in the supply of consumable 

products and solutions related to the foundry industry. 

Foundry Services was born of an idea that took shape in a small town of Birmingham in England in 1932. FOSECO as the 

name stands originates from the term FOundry SErvices COmpany. One of the most recognised brand names in the world, it 

has become an integral part of the foundry industry as a supplier of high quality consumable products to the various sectors. 

Foseco continuously focusses on technical service, market leading technology supported by above industry average 

investment in R&D to provide business enhancing solutions to its customers. It has manufacturing footprints close to all the 

main steel and foundry markets in the world. It trains its engineers who are progressively integrated within the global network 

of experts. Local manufacturing, local expertise and leveraging global knowledge of the foundry processes positions Foseco 

in a special relationship with its customers. Helping them optimise their processes and product performances, it provides its 

customers, products and expertise to create best solutions and reap full benefits for success.

FOSECO'S BUSINESS MODEL

Foseco operates a profitable, flexible, cash generative and growth-building business model centred around strong Customer 

Relationships and local presence. It has built the brand equity of its products through reliability, technology and service over 

many decades. Foseco provides a comprehensive range of foundry technologies, equipment and consumable supplies 

backed by world-leading foundry process and product application expertise. Understanding the need of the customers and 

offering them solutions that are unique puts Foseco on a different footing than its competitors. These are delivered to the 

customers by an international team of experts, passionate about consistently creating better castings through a partnership 

model with Foundries. The value addition is made through improvements in process capability, casting yields, resource 

utilisation, efficiency and development of new business opportunities.

Foseco's Target Customer Segments

Foseco services the needs of the following industrial sectors:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FOUNDRY PROCESS AND OUR STRATEGY

The Foundry Process

The foundry process is highly sequential and similar to the continuous casting of steel and is critically dependent on 

consistency of product quality and productivity optimisation. Foseco is a leading supplier of consumable products, solutions 

and associated services in the areas of foundry process as shown below:
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Business Strategy

Foseco India follows the strategy of “Solution Partnering” that is founded on its five core area of strength viz., Product 

Technology, Application Expertise, Process Knowledge, Process Control and Customer Relationships. The Solutions offered 

help the customers improve their business perfomance wherever possible and reducing environmental impact by using 

environmentally friendly products that conserves natural resources. It continually works to improve its Solutions offerings to 

deliver the Greatest Value to its customers.

Product Technology: Foseco is the only supplier that offers products and services across the entire foundry process in both 

Ferrous and Non Ferrous areas. This global proprietary consumable product technology consists of:
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Process Knowledge: Foseco's engineers possess in-depth understanding of customer's processes for manufacturing of  

casting from melting to post cast treatment.

Process Control: Foseco's range of sophisticated and State-of-the-Art Process Control equipments help ensure process 

management, measurement, consistency, improved productivity and reliability of cast components.

Customer Relationships: A conviction that customer partnerships, where expertise and knowledge are shared, result in the 

greatest performance improvements for its customers, is the cornerstone of Foseco's strategy.

Application Expertise: Foseco team maintains an in-depth knowledge of customers' operations and application of its 

products across a wide range of foundry processes.
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ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Global Economy

The global economy has seen an improvement in sentiment with growth in some major economies. However, the rising price 

of oil due to political uncertainties in West Asia, supply dislocation in some other oil-exporting countries, high exposure to 

natural disasters, increasing global tensions, concerns about global warming and rapid climatic changes, will pose threats to 

economic recovery. The restriction on availability of key raw materials in view of clamp down by Chinese Government due to 

environmental concerns, inward looking policies of major world economies, buildup of financial vulnerabilities are some of the 

key factors that will drive the global economy in the near future. The result of these factors will be felt during the coming period 

and will affect the foundry industry. 

Indian Economy – Opportunities and Threats

India being largely a domestically-driven economy, most investors, domestic and international, remain positive about its 

economic future. This belief emanates from the series of measures taken by the Government in boosting the economy, which 

recorded a growth of 7.1% in 2016-17, logging the fatest expansion globally. The Indian economy is poised for growth which is 

evident from the recent upgrade of India's local and foreign currency issuer ratings and also improvement in rating of the 

Indian economy on the global scale.

The twin effects of demonetisation and the hardship faced by the tax payers imposing enormous compliance burden of the 

Goods and Services Tax (GST) has affected the Indian business environment, especially the business in the foundry industry 

which largely exist in the unorganised sector. Other bold measures of the Government, viz., the enactment of the Real Estate 

(Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA) and implementation of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) 

and the Supreme Court's directive on the BS IV legislation, whose effects were greatly felt during the year 2017, kept the 

economy subdued for better part of the year. The movement of the Indian rupee against the US dollar had been quite erratic, 

having appreciated sharply in the beginning of the year. Concerns of fiscal slippage at the Central and State Government 

levels, rising crude oil prices and increase in trade deficit has exerted downward pressure on the rupee. The improvement 

seen in the Indian Industrial Production (IIP) numbers since the last couple of months suggest that the Indian economy has 

now moved on a recovery path which is a good indicator of the effectiveness of the above measures. The turnaround of the 

production cycle, is quite significant because that will bring in investment, which is the most important autonomous driver of 

growth in a trade deficit economy. All the above steps could give a strong push to private investment and growth. The same is 

true of public infrastructure projects, which have been a major priority of the present Government. 

Foundry Industry scenario – Future Outlook

Worldwide casting production grew by less than half a percent for the second year in a row in 2016. In 2016, worldwide casting 

production was 104.4 million metric tons, a near match to 2015's reported 104.1 million metric tons. Casting growth from 2014 

to 2015 was 0.4%, and from 2015-2016 it was 0.2%. Of the 32 countries with data for the last two years, 14 reported an uptick 

in production. The world's top 10 casting producing nations produced 91.6 million metric tons of the total 104.4 million metric 

tons. China reported a 3.5% increase since 2015, putting its total production at 47.2 million metric tons — 45% of total world 

casting production. India reported a 5.4% increase in production to 11.35 million metric tons, gaining space ahead of the US, 

which has seen lower tonnage shipped in 2015 and 2016 compared to 2014.  

The Indian foundry industry manufactures metal cast components for applications in Auto, Tractor, Railways, Machine tools, 

Sanitary, Pipe Fittings, Defence, Aerospace, Earth Moving, Textile, Cement, Electrical, Power machinery, Pumps / Valves, 

Wind turbine generators etc. Foundry Industry has reported a turnover of approximately USD 19 billion, with exports of 

approximately USD 2.5 billion. However, Grey Iron Castings have the major share i.e. approximately 68% of the total castings 

produced. Out of nearly 5000 units, 90% of the units are in the small and micro-scale enterprises.
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Exports-Import Trends

The exports for FY 2016-17 were lower at USD 2.4 billion in comparison with FY 2015-16 at USD 2.5 billion.

Source: http://www.foundryinfo-india.org/profile_of_indian.aspx

New Government Initiatives

The Government of India's programmes of Make in India, Skill Development and Ease of Doing business are expected to 

drive the demand for castings. It is expected to ease FDI norms and promote investments in infrastructure and manufacturing 

sectors. The Auto, Auto Components and Capital Goods Industry have drawn up ambition plans of growth in the next 10 years 

which will drive the demand for metal casting industry .The Capital Goods Policy of the Government envisages the sector to 

grow from USD 35 billion to USD 115 billion industry by 2025 .Whereas the auto sector as per Automotive Mission plan 2016-

2026 envisages the sector to grow 3.5 to 4 times of the current value of USD 74 billion to USD 260 billion to 300 billion. Even if 

these plans achieve 75-80%, it will augur well for the Indian Foundry Industry. Owing to the increase in demand from the 

automotive sector, driven by rising production of commercial and passenger vehicles, two and three wheelers across the 

globe, the demand for iron and aluminium castings could grow 35-40% by 2019-20 from the current levels.

yinfofof -india.org/proror file_of_indian.aspx

Initiatives
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FOSECO'S PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Performance

Foseco has maintained its continued run of growth in Sales in a very competitive and volatile business environment.

Table 1: Abridged Profit and Loss Account (Rs. In Lakhs)

During the year under review your Company registered a growth of 5.4% in Revenue and a drop in Profit After Tax by 5.3% 

over the year 2016. The growth in revenue was achieved through Solutions Projects at Customers and Strategic Share Gain 

in Feeding, Coatings and Non-Ferrous Solutions Groups. Margins dropped due to severe volatility in raw material prices. 

There was a lag in recovery of prices of the principal raw materials from the market due to fiercely competitive environment. 

The prices were under pressure due to stiff competition arising out of limited market opportunities. The Company generated 

Rs. 7938 Lakhs cash from its operations in 2017 as against Rs. 4861 Lakhs in 2016.

Table 2: Key Financial Ratios

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)

Safety First… This motto is ingrained in every employee right from the time he/she joins the Company. Safety is not only the 

First but also the Foremost area of focus. Foseco strives to achieve the highest standards of HSE practices, having adopted 

an Integrated (Quality, Health, Safety and Environment) Management System (IMS) accredited to ISO 9001:2008, ISO 

14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001-2007. The Company has well established HSE standards and monitoring process for each 

of its operations. It ensures the involvement of everyone in the HSE journey. Some of these initiatives are Behavioural Based 

Safety audits, identification and completion of safety improvement opportunities, monthly HSE team meetings and Turbo S 

that focusses on raising the level of safety culture. It also runs continuous improvement programs for employee's health and 

environment. This initiative had resulted in 1937 safety improvement opportunities identified and implemented at the 

manufacturing sites during the year 2017. A special study was conducted on dust to ensure that the processes are well within 

Particulars 2017 2016

Total Revenue 36012 34160

Operating Expenses 30665 28481

EBITDA 5347 5679

Depreciation 534 505

PBIT 4813 5174

Finance Charges 35 42

PBT 4778 5132

Tax 1646 1824

PAT 3132 3308

Particulars 2017 2016

PBIT/ Total Revenue 13.35% 15.14%

PAT/ Total Revenue 8.69% 9.68%

ROCE 32.70% 41.11%

RONW 21.50% 26.61%

Debt Equity Ratio 0.01 0.01
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acceptable limits. To increase HSE awareness amongst employees, Foseco regularly conducts internal competition and 

participates in competitions organised by trade bodies. Foseco has won the “Operational Excellence in Safety" award in 

February 2017.

Quality and Reliability

Reliability in quality and delivery is vital to Foseco's customers as they use its products in critical areas of their processes. 

Reliability therefore is a primary commitment of Foseco, which it strives to deliver through best-in-class quality management 

in its production sites. Its quality systems define the commitments and responsibilities which apply to all aspects of the 

business. A new “Turbo Q” quality initiative launched a few years ago has been instrumental in continuous improvement of 

quality standards and processes.

Operations

Foseco India Limited has state of art manufacturing facilities in Pune and Puducherry. It also imports products from its group 

manufacturing locations in other parts of the world. Foseco operates in a cellular manufacturing structure. Each cell is “a 

factory within a factory” and has end-to-end responsibility of the entire supply chain process – from purchase to 

manufacturing process to despatch. This workflow ensures that the entire cell team is responsible for safety, quality, 

production, cost and product delivery.

In 2017, “Excellence” was declared as a sixth value by the Vesuvius Group, which has been the hallmark of Foseco. Foseco is 

progressively using operational excellence tools to standardise its processes and activities and ensure efficient systems to 

delight customers. With the Lean philosophy (to reduce non-value adding activities – WASTE), Foseco is becoming more 

flexible to take new challenges in customer satisfaction. These initiatives are very well backed by innovative engineering 

practices and solutions. To penetrate “Excellence” among the employees, extensive workshops for top management people 

were conducted in Pune facility. About 60 people participated in the workshops. To promote “Excellence”, regional 8D PPS 

competition was organized. A team from Pune won this competition and received the 'Living The Values Award' at Vienna in 

December 2017. Kaizen competitions were held for process operators at all manufacturing locations to promote the culture of 

continuous improvement. A total of 566 Kaizen's were completed by the operators during the year.

Human Resources

Human Resources is Foseco's greatest strength and a foundation 

for long-term success. This year the Company launched its 

quarterly magazine – FOSECONNECT. It is designed to keep the 

people connected while sharing their thoughts, messages and 

updates. Another step taken towards employee welfare was Project 

MUSKAAN. In the present-day work environment, the employees 

of Foseco need an outlet for their thoughts and feelings, 

maintaining delicate work-life balance, engaging with the society, et 

al. In the process, employees often get emotionally disturbed due to 

workplace fatigue and pressure of living a very fast, urban and 
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materialistic life. To help them tide over the crises and 

cope with their behaviour, the Company has joined 

hands with professional psychologists who engages 

with the employees and provide counselling support 

and guidance for improvement. “MastiTime2.0” was 

re-launched during the year with the intention of 

bringing energy, creativity and teamwork in a fun-filled 

environment for the employees. 'Vijaypath' and 

'Indradhanush' were the other noteworthy initiatives to 

encourage open communication and engagement 

with employees. Initiatives related to Reward & 

Recognition like 'SITAARE', 'VIJETA', 'Foseco T-20', 

'ZETA gift cards', Long service awards and 'Foseco 

HEERA' proved to be very effective in adding to the 

motivation of employees to put their best for the 

success and growth of the organisation.

Annual Balanced Score Card process continues in the organisation that encourages High Performance Culture. Building of 

managerial and technical competencies is an area of constant focus. 'Foseco University', the e-Learning platform continued 

to provide impetus to the organisation's drive to build 

competencies of its customer and market facing 

functions. Every year, Foseco earns customer recognition 

for its services. This year, Foseco was proud to have 

received, amongst other awards, the “Best Supplier 

Award – Product Development Category” from Enkei 

Wheels (India) Limited.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has been an 

important area of focus for the Company. Keeping the 

welfare of the neighbourhood communities in mind, the 

Company undertook various projects in association with 

Rotary Foundation. Rotary Foundation reciprocated the 

Company's contribution on account of the CSR by 

presenting it with a 'Certificate of Appreciation' for the 

contribution made. The Company also undertook welfare 

programmes in association with the Local Gram 

Panchayat in the vicinity of its office and manufacturing 

site for the people of Sanaswadi. Such high impact 

initiatives created immense goodwill and positivity 

towards your Company.
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Information Technology

Foseco's IT systems are on SAP Business One. The SAP Business One ERP has been seamlessly integrated with the 

Vesuvius manufacturing application, HALO and the Purchase Requisition System. The entire IT applications suite was 

upgraded in July 2017 to cater to the requirements of GST. In December 2017, the entire ERP infrastructure was moved from 

the data centre in China to the data centre in Germany to improve the performance of the system.

The Company's e-mailing system was migrated from IBM Lotus Notes to Microsoft Outlook in April 2017. Although it will 

continue to use multiple Lotus Notes applications until these are migrated to Microsoft Sharepoint or other suitable 

applications.

The IT processes of the Company are accredited to ISO 9001:2008.

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

Foseco adopts a rigorous system of Internal Control and Risk Management to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and 

protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition and that transactions are authorised, recorded and reported 

quickly. In addition, the Company has a well-structured system of risk assessment and risk reporting. 

The Company's internal controls are supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits, review by management and 

documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The internal controls are designed to ensure that financial and other 

records are reliable for preparing financial information and other data and for maintaining accountability of assets. During the 

year, due care has been exercised by the Company with respect to all the requirements of the Company Law and Listing 

Regulations.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company's objectives, projections, 

estimates and expectations may be 'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable securities laws 

and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments 

that could affect the Company's operations include economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price 

conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in the Government 

regulations, tax laws, and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.
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1. Introduction: 

 This document briefly summarises the policies and 

guidelines adopted by Foseco India Limited in relation 

to the Company's communications with investors, 

analysts and the Market generally. Any amendment to 

the Company's policies on these matters requires the 

approval of the Board of Directors. 

2.  Responsibility for Communications: 

 The following individuals have exclusive responsibility 

(subject to the directions from the Board) for the 

Company's communications with the Market:

 Pradeep Mallick  -  Chairperson

Sanjay Mathur  -  Managing Director

 In the normal course, no other individuals within the 

Company are authorised to communicate with the 

investors, analysts or the Market without the actual 

involvement or express permission of at least one of 

the persons named above. The Company will arrange 

for appropriate training and advice to be provided to 

any individual involved in Market communications.

 UNAUTHORISED COMMUNICATIONS ARE 

PROHIBITED.

3.  Preparation and Release of Announcements: 

 The Company is required to take reasonable care in 

the preparation of formal announcements. The 

individuals named in Section 2 above will be 

responsible for coordinating the review and checking 

of announcements, in conjunction with advisers. It is 

particularly important to confirm in each case that 

nothing has been omitted which makes an 

announcement misleading. Verification procedures 

may also be necessary and undertaken with the 

assistance of advisers and the Company's Auditors 

prior to the release of some announcements to ensure 

no incorrect statement is made and that due 

consideration has been given to the content.

 No announcement (including financial results) may be 

released without the express authority of the 

individuals named in Section 2 above, following the 

approval by the Board where required.

 Release of announcements containing inside 

information must be made as soon as possible and 

posted on the Company's website by the end of the 

business day. If the Company is faced with an 

unexpected and significant event, a short delay may 

be acceptable if it is necessary to clarify the situation.

 Further, the Company must take reasonable care to 

ensure that the disclosure of inside information to the 

public is synchronised as closely as possible in all 

jurisdictions in which its securities are traded.

4.  Communications with Analysts: 

 There are legal risks in relation to “early or selective 

disclosure” of relevant information to third parties, 

including analysts. The Company's policy is that:

• as a strict rule, no meetings or scheduled 

communications with analysts will take place 

during closed periods;

• at no time can inside information be discussed 

with analysts;

• following release of interim or final financial 

results, the Company may discuss current trading 

in similar terms to any comments made in the 

announcement but will not brief analysts on 

expectations for results in the current year;

• communications with analysts outside closed 

periods are likely to be more frequent but in any 

event no unpublished relevant information will be 

revealed and care will need to be taken to avoid 

inadvertently divulging inside information, for 

example, where cumulative disclosure could 

amount to inside information;

• the Company will keep a contemporaneous note 

of meetings with analysts and try to ensure at 

least two representatives of the Company are 

present; and 

• the Company will not correct an analyst's 

estimates or conclusions which it believes to be 

mistaken (whether in a draft or a published 

report), but through a formal announcement may 

correct any widespread misapprehension in the 

Market regarding the Company's trading or 

prospects.

Dissemination of Information to the Market Policy
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5. Insider Lists: 

 The Company must ensure that it and persons acting 

on its behalf (for example banks, accountants and 

lawyers) or on its account, draw up and maintain a list 

of those persons working for them, whether under a 

contract of employment or otherwise who have access 

to inside information relating, directly or indirectly, to 

the Company, whether on a regular or occasional 

basis. The Company must also ensure that those on 

the insider list acknowledges the legal and regulatory 

duties entailed and are aware of the sanctions for 

misusing or improperly circulating the Company's 

inside information. Insider lists must be kept for at 

least five years from the date on which they are drawn 

up or updated, whichever is the latest.

6.  Records: 

 A record should be kept of any meetings or other 

scheduled communications with analysts, investors or 

journalists. Documents relating to the preparation and 

approval of the f inancial results and other 

announcements (including contemporaneous records 

of the Company's reasons for not making an 

announcement or for delaying an announcement) 

relating to Market communications, should always be 

prepared with care. This will include board minutes, 

internal memos, notes of meetings and board packs. 

7.  Journalists / Newspapers: 

 Similar rules apply to communications with journalists 

as in the case of analysts. Inside information should 

not be released to a single journalist, analyst or 

newspaper. 

8. Leaks and Press Speculation: 

 The Company will not normally comment on rumours 

or speculations which appear in the media. If it 

appears that important unpublished information which 

amounts to inside information has been leaked to a 

newspaper, urgent consideration will be given to 

whether an announcement should be made. If the 

Market has reacted to the leak,  a prompt 

announcement wil l  normally be needed. An 

announcement may also be required if press 

speculation or market rumour regarding the Company 

is largely accurate without a leak having occurred and 

the information underlying the press speculation or 

market rumour is inside information to which the 

Market is reacting and the confidentiality of the inside 

information cannot be ensured. However, the more 

accurate a rumour, the more likely it is that there has 

been a breach of confidentiality and that an 

announcement should be made as soon as possible. 

In addition, if there is a danger of inside information 

leaking before the facts and their impact can be 

confirmed or wherever the confidentiality of inside 

in format ion cannot  be ensured,  a hold ing 

announcement should be released immediately. The 

level of detai l  required wil l  depend on the 

circumstances. 

 However, the knowledge that a rumour or press 

speculation is false is not likely to amount to inside 

information. In the event it does amount to inside 

information, it may be possible for the Company to 

delay disclosure in accordance with the Disclosure 

Rules. 

9. Trading Updates: 

 In addition to regular announcements, consideration 

will be given at appropriate times to the formal release 

of trading updates (to enable fuller communication 

with the Market). 

10.  Other Announcements: 

 During a closed period or at other times, the Company 

may be required to announce a signif icant 

development, such as a new contract or “preferred 

bidder” status on a concession. If such an 

announcement is required during a closed period, 

brief comment on the Company's forthcoming results 

may be misleading and should normally be avoided.
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The Board of Directors 

Foseco India Limited 

Sanaswadi, 

Pune – 412 208 

1 February, 2018

CERTIFICATION BY

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

In compliance with Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read 

with Part B of Schedule II, we hereby certify that:-

We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 31 December, 2017, 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading.

(b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing 

Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the aforesaid period 

which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 

the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 

Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 

aware, and that we have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

(a) there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

(b) there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that adequate disclosure have 

been made in the notes to the financial statements, and

(c) there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if 

any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over 

financial reporting.

 Sanjay Mathur R Umesh

 Managing Director  Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Foseco India Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foseco India Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then 

ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting 

standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and 

other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 

made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the financial statements. .

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 

2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date..

Other Matter

9. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016, were audited by another firm of 

chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report dated February 8, 2017, expressed an 

unmodified opinion on those financial statements. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 

sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the 

books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11.  As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books, except that the back- up of the books of accounts and other books and 

papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on December 31, 2017 taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on December 31, 2017 from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to our 

comment in Paragraph 11(b) above that the back- up of the books of accounts and other books and papers 

maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and 

according to the information and explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at December 31, 2017 on its financial 

position in its financial statements – Refer Note 27.3.1; 

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at December 31, 2017 for which there were no material 

foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at December 31, 2017. 

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2017

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N500016

 Amit Borkar

 Partner

 Membership Number: 109846

Place: Pune

Date: February 1, 2018
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Referred to in paragraph 11 (g) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Foseco India Limited on 

the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Foseco India Limited (“the Company”) as of 

December 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 

date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 

our audit.We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report – 31 December 2017
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at December 31, 

2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N500016

 Amit Borkar
Place: Pune Partner
Date: February 1, 2018 Membership Number: 109846

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report – 31 December 2017 (continued)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report – 31 December 2017

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Foseco India Limited on the 
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017 

i.  (a)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, 
of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year. The 
discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of 
account.In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 11 on fixed assets to the financial statements, are 
held in the name of the Company. 

ii.  The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties have been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the Management during the year.In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been 
confirmed by them.The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were 
not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited LiabilityPartnerships or 
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), 
(iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the 
parties covered under Section 185 and 186.Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act 
and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as 
specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the 
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, 
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 
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vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
Goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

  (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the 
particulars of dues of income tax, and value added tax as at December 31, 2017 which have not been deposited 
on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Amount
(Rs. Lakhs)

Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Income Tax Act Income tax 129.36# 1998-1999 (AY) Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act Income tax 11.59@ 2005-2006 (AY) Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals)

Central Sales Tax 
Act

Central Sales 
Tax

26.65 2008-2009 (FY) Joint Commissioner of Sales 
Tax (Appeals)

  # Paid Rs. 129.36 Lakhs under protest 

  @ Paid Rs. 11.59 Lakhs under protest 

viii. As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government, nor has it 
issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) 
and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 
188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required 
under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N500016

 Amit Borkar
Place: Pune Partner
Date: February 1, 2018 Membership Number: 109846

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report – 31 December 2017 (continued)
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Balance Sheet as at 31st December 2017
 PARTICULARS Note

No.
As at 31st 

December, 2017
As at 31st 

December, 2016

 Rs. Lakhs  Rs. Lakhs 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

 Share Capital 3  638.65  638.65 

 Reserves and Surplus 4  13,926.78  11,794.13 

 14,565.43  12,432.78 

Non Current Liabilities

 Long Term Borrowings 5 -  64.53 

 Other Long Term Liabilities 6  107.38  63.84 

 Long Term Provisions 7  20.35  23.84 

 127.73  152.21 

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables 8

- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises  79.03  500.19 

- Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises 

6,270.29 3,928.88 

6,349.32 4,429.07 

 Other Current Liabilities 9  886.87  654.91 

 Short Term Provisions 10  165.07  626.92 

7,401.26 5,710.90 

TOTAL  22,094.42  18,295.89 

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

 Fixed Assets 11

 - Tangible Assets 2,277.41 2,539.04 

 - Intangible Assets 0.07  30.74 

 - Capital Work-in-Progress  115.27  24.16 

 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12  223.27  180.79 

 Long Term Loans and Advances 13  388.31  750.61 

3,004.33 3,525.34 

Current Assets

 Inventories 14 1,671.15 1,916.43 

 Trade Receivables 15  10,057.59 9,960.66 

 Cash and Bank Balances 16 7,253.46 2,507.20 

 Short Term Loans and Advances 17  90.95  385.74 

 Other Current Assets 18  16.94 0.52 

 19,090.09  14,770.55 

TOTAL  22,094.42  18,295.89 

 Significant Accounting Policies 2

 Notes to Financial Statements 27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of

Firm Registration No. 012754N / N500016 Directors of Foseco India Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L24294PN1958PLC011052

Amit Borkar Pradeep Mallick  Sanjay Mathur  Ajit Shah 

Partner Chairman  Managing Director  Director 

Membership No. 109846 DIN : 00061256  DIN : 00029858  DIN : 02396765 

Indira Parikh  Glenn Cowie

Director  Director

DIN : 00143801  DIN : 07163534

R Umesh  Mahendra Dutia

Chief Financial Officer  Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary

Place :Pune Date :1st February 2018 Place :Lonavala  Date : 1st February 2018
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st December 2017
 PARTICULARS Note

No.
Year ended 

31st December, 
2017

Year ended 
31st December, 

2016

 Rs. Lakhs  Rs. Lakhs 

 Revenue from Operations 19

 Sale of Products  37,496.15  37,984.44 

 Less : Excise Duty 2,109.32 4,101.34 

 35,386.83  33,883.10 

 Sale of Services 2.49 6.94 

 Other Operating Revenues  370.15  60.46 

 Total Revenue from Operations  35,759.47  33,950.50 

 Other Income 20  253.04  209.44 

 Total Revenue  36,012.51  34,159.94 

 Expenses: 

 Cost of Materials Consumed 21  21,045.17  19,140.52 

 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 22  568.89  849.21 

 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade 23 (27.81) (9.34)

 Employee Benefits Expense 24 3,126.19 2,660.89 

 Finance Cost 25  35.26  41.52 

 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 11  534.13  505.20 

 Other Expenses 26 5,952.64 5,839.67 

 Total Expenses  31,234.47  29,027.67 

 Profit Before Tax 4,778.04 5,132.27 

 Tax Expense: 

 - Current Tax(Net of excess provision of tax relating to earlier years 
Rs 4.79.Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 22.24 Lakhs) 

1,688.61 1,864.24 

 - Deferred Tax (42.48) (40.14)

Total Tax Expense 1,646.13 1,824.10 

 Profit for the Year 3,131.91 3,308.17 

 Earnings Per Equity Share: 

- Basic  49.04  51.80 

- Diluted  49.04  51.80 

Number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each  63,86,459  63,86,459 

(refer Note 2 point 1.14 & Note 27.9) 

 Significant Accounting Policies 2

 Notes to Financial Statements 27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of

Firm Registration No. 012754N / N500016 Directors of Foseco India Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L24294PN1958PLC011052

Amit Borkar Pradeep Mallick  Sanjay Mathur  Ajit Shah 

Partner Chairman  Managing Director  Director 

Membership No. 109846 DIN : 00061256  DIN : 00029858  DIN : 02396765 

Indira Parikh  Glenn Cowie

Director  Director

DIN : 00143801  DIN : 07163534

R Umesh  Mahendra Dutia

Chief Financial Officer  Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary

Place :Pune Date :1st February 2018 Place :Lonavala  Date : 1st February 2018
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st December 2017

Particulars Year ended 
31st December, 

2017

Year ended 
31st December, 

2016

 Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs

 A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax 4,778.04 5,132.27 

Adjustments for :

Depreciation / Amortisation  534.13  505.20 

Provision of Doubtful Debts  88.98  257.23 

Bad Debts Written Off  3.58  19.92 

Unrealised Foreign Exchange (gain)/ loss [Net]  5.37 (11.04)

Interest Income (153.35) (93.61)

Finance Cost  35.26  41.52 

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) (13.00) 4.53 

 Operating profit before working capital changes 5,279.01 5,856.02 

Adjustments for :

(Increase) in Trade Receivables (197.51)  (1,203.39)

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  245.28 (328.55)

(Increase) in Long Term Loans and Advances (excluding capital advance, advance 
taxes and deposits with Income Tax Authorities)

(12.70)  (5.42)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Short Term Loans and Advances  294.79 (182.96)

Increase in Trade Payables 1,922.90  841.08 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  289.71 (52.20)

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities  43.54  (4.36)

(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions (3.49) (17.34)

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (excluding provision for tax and 
proposed dividend)

 76.21 (42.36)

Cash generated from operations 7,937.74 4,860.52 

Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds)  (1,363.31)  (1,658.08)

Net cash from operating activities 6,574.43 3,202.44 

 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets (including net movement in Capital Work-in-Progress) (285.97) (433.23)

Sale of Fixed Assets  15.73 1.73 

Deposits Made with Banks (0.52) (311.80)

Proceeds from Maturity of Deposits with Banks  311.80 5.13 

Interest Received  136.93  93.26 

 Net cash from / (used in) investing activities  177.97 (644.91)
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Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Particulars Year ended 
31st December, 

2017

Year ended 
31st December, 

2016

 Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs

 C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Unsecured Loan (120.28) (173.22)

Interest Paid (35.26) (41.52)

Dividends Paid  (1,277.29)  (1,468.88)

Dividend Distribution Tax (260.03) (299.04)

 Net cash used in financing activities  (1,692.86)  (1,982.66)

 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) -

 Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents - (A+B+C) 5,059.54  574.87 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,116.05 1,541.18 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7,175.59 2,116.05 

Particulars Year ended 
31st December, 

2017

Year ended 
31st December, 

2016

 Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Cash on Hand  2.64 2.14 

 Cheques on Hand -  66.76 

 Balances with Banks 

- In current accounts 2,257.95 2,047.15 

- Demand Deposits (less than three months maturity) 4,915.00 - 

7,175.59 2,116.05 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of

Firm Registration No. 012754N / N500016 Directors of Foseco India Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L24294PN1958PLC011052

Amit Borkar Pradeep Mallick  Sanjay Mathur  Ajit Shah 

Partner Chairman  Managing Director  Director 

Membership No. 109846 DIN : 00061256  DIN : 00029858  DIN : 02396765 

Indira Parikh  Glenn Cowie

Director  Director

DIN : 00143801  DIN : 07163534

R Umesh  Mahendra Dutia

Chief Financial Officer  Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary

Place :Pune Date :1st February 2018 Place :Lonavala  Date : 1st February 2018
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Note 1 : Company Background

Nature of Operations

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of products used in the metallurgical industry. The products are in the 
nature of additives and consumables that improve the physical properties and performance of castings. The 
manufacturing activities are at Sanaswadi and Puducherry.

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the standards of 
accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and 
recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified 
under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been 
prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the 
Companies Act, 1956.[Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division I) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.2 Use of Estimates

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenue and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.The estimates and assumptions 
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts 
and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements.Actual results may differ from the estimates and 
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Current and Non-current Classification

 All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

 Assets

 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

 - it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating 
cycle

 - it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 - it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

 - it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least 12 months after the reporting date.

 Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

 Liabilities

 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 - it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle

 - it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 - it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

 - the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification

Notes to Financial Statements
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 Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as 
non-current.

2.4 Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation

 Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes inward 
freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition, construction and installation of 
the fixed assets. 

 An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets, based on technical evaluation done by management’s expert. The management believes that the 
useful lives as given below best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

 The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it is included 
in the carrying amount of any other asset. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are 
reviewed atleast at each financial year end. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are 
accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

 Assets individually costing Rs 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

 Leasehold land is depreciated over the initial period of the lease.

2.5 Intangible Assets and Amortization

 Intangible assets representing computer software are recorded at their acquisition price and are amortised 
over their estimated useful life of 2 years on a straight line basis commencing from the date the assets are 
available for use. The useful life of the intangible assets is reviewed by the Management at each balance sheet 
date. 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

 Category / Group of Asset Estimated Useful Life (in years)

 Buildings 

 Factory and Other Building 25

 Plant and Machinery 

 Computer Hardware 3

 Production Machinery 10

 Energy Saving Devices  6 / 7

 Effluent Treatment Plant 5

 Other Machinery 5

 Machinery at Customers’ / Processors’ Site 4

 Laboratory and Office Equipment's 

 Laboratory Equipment  6 / 7

 Office Equipment 5

 Electrical Equipment  6 / 7

 Electrical Installations  6 / 7

 Furniture and Fittings 

 Furniture and Fixtures 10

 Motor Vehicles 

 Vehicles 4
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2.6 Impairment of Assets

  In accordance with Accounting Standard 28 – Impairment of Assets (AS 28), the carrying amounts of the 
Company’s assets are reviewed at each Balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indications exist, the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated, as the higher of the net 
selling price and the value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication 
that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the 
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount, subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

2.7 Investments

  Long-term investments are stated at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined 
separately for each individual investment. 

2.8 Inventories

  Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and other costs necessary to 
make the sale. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average method and includes expenditure in 
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to the present location and condition. In the case of manufactured 
inventories, cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and an appropriate share of overheads based on 
normal operating capacity of the production facilities. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made 
on an item-by-item basis. 

  Raw materials and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost 
except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of finished products will 
exceed their net realisable value.

2.9 Revenue Recognition 

  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods 
transfers to the customers. Sales are recorded net of Excise Duty or Goods and Services Tax or as applicable, 
discounts and rebates. 

  Revenue from ‘solutions partnering’ and management and other services are recognized when the rendering 
of services are completed and to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue from such services can be reliably measured.

  Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amount invested and the 
rate applicable. 

2.10 Foreign Exchange Transactions

  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the 
year end exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

2.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

  In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks with 
original maturities of three months or less.

2.12 Employee Benefits

a) Short-term employee benefits

 Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short 
term employee benefits and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related 
service.

b) Post-employment benefits (defined benefit plans)

 The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation 
or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of 
employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at 

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year 
in which they arise.

c) Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plans)

 Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund for all employees is made to the regulatory 
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined 
Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions 
made on a monthly basis.

 Superannuation fund: Contributions is respect of employees covered under the scheme are made to the 
Life Insurance Corporation of India at applicable rates. The Company's contribution is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

d) Compensated Absences

 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months 
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same 
is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount 
expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months 
from the end of the year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is 
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ 
gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2.13 Taxation

  Income-tax comprises current tax, (i.e. amount of tax for the year determined in accordance with the income-
tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting 
income and taxable income for the year).

  The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using 
the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the asset can be realised in future; however, 
where there is unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward losses under taxation laws, deferred tax assets 
are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually 
certain (as the case may be) to be realised. 

2.14 Earnings Per Share

  The basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting 
period.

  Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the 
weighted average number of equity and equivalent dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year, except 
where the results would be anti-dilutive.

2.15 Provisions

  A provision is recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, in 
respect of which a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. These are reviewed at each 
Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

2.16 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

  A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that 
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be 
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of 
outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial 
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of 
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change 
occurs.

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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 C Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share.Each shareholder is 

eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, expect incase of interim dividends.

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 

distribution of allpreferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

 2017 
Rs. Lakhs 

2016
 Rs. Lakhs 

Note 3 : Share Capital

Authorised

7,500,000 (Previous Year 7,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 750.00 750.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up

6,386,459 (Previous Year 6,386,459) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up Total 638.65 638.65

A There is no movement in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

B Details of shareholder's holding more than 5% of shares in the company Value (Rupees) 
Number of Shares

Percentage

Value (Rupees)
Number of Shares

Percentage

1 Promoter Group representing 4,788,845 shares, cumulatively representing 
74.98% of the total paid up capital are held by;

a)  Vesuvius Holdings Limited, United Kingdom - Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Company  5,440,660  5,440,660 

 544,066  544,066 

8.52% 8.52%

b)  Foseco Overseas Limited, United Kingdom - Immediate Holding Company  37,042,190  37,042,190 

 3,704,219  3,704,219 

58.00% 58.00%

c)  Foseco (UK) Limited, United Kingdom - Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Company  5,405,600  5,405,600 

 540,560  540,560 

8.46% 8.46%

2 Public Shareholding 

a) Karibu Limited, United Kingdom  7,332,260  7,332,260 

 733,226  733,226 

11.48% 11.48%

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.17 Dividend

  The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders, and interim 
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

 2017 
Rs. Lakhs 

2016
 Rs. Lakhs

Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus

Securities Premium Account  1,912.60  1,912.60 

General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year  3,359.58  3,028.58 

Add : Amount transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the 
year

313.19 331.00 

Balance as at the end of the year  3,672.77  3,359.58 

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year  6,521.95  5,312.70 

Profit for the year  3,131.91  3,308.17 

Profit available for Appropriation  9,653.86  8,620.87 

Less Appropriations:

Interim Dividend 830.24  1,021.83 

Tax on Interim Dividend 169.02 208.03 

Proposed Final Dividend - 447.05 

Tax on Proposed Final Dividend - 91.01 

Transfer to General Reserve 313.19 331.00 

 1,312.45  2,098.92 

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss  8,341.41  6,521.95 

Total  13,926.78  11,794.13 

Note 5 : Long Term Borrowings

 Unsecured 

 Deferred Payment Liability - Sales Tax Deferral Loan (refer note below) -  64.53 

Total -  64.53 

 Note : The repayment of Sales Tax Deferral Loan has commenced from April, 2011 and is scheduled to be repaid by April, 2018. 
Current maturity of sales tax deferral loan is shown under Other Current Liabilities (refer Note 9).

Note 6 : Other Long Term Liabilities

 Others 

 - Payable to Employees and Executive Directors 90.63  47.09 

 - Earnest Money Received Against Leasehold Land (refer note below) 16.75 16.75

Total 107.38 63.84

Note : This amount has been received with respect to the agreement for leasehold land at Chinchwad
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
 2017 

Rs. Lakhs 
2016

 Rs. Lakhs

Note 7 : Long Term Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits

- Compensated Absences  20.35  23.84

Total  20.35 23.84

 

Note 8 : Trade Payables

Trade Payables

- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 79.03 500.19

- Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than MicroEnterprises andSmall Enterprises 6,270.29 3,928.88

Total  6,349.32  4,429.07

Note :
The identification of micro, small and medium enterprises is based on the management's knowledge of their status. The Company has 
circulated letters to its suppliers requesting them to confirm whether they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) in the current financial year. In view of the Management there is no significant variation from the last 
year in the list of vendors which fall under this category. 

Dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at  2017 2016

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at year end

 79.01  500.12 

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 
unpaid as at year 

- - 

c) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond 
the appointed day during the year

d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers 
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under 
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

- - 

f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for 
payments already made 

0.02 0.07 

g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - - 

Note 9 : Other Current Liabilities 

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings

- Deferred Payment Liability - Sales Tax Deferral Loan  64.53  120.28 

Dues to Non-executive Directors  21.70  21.70 

Other Liabilities

 - Payable to Employees and Executive Directors  323.50  127.06 

 - TDS Payable  131.20  105.09 

 - PF / ESI Payable  25.98  27.43 

 - Goods & Services Tax / Excise Duty Payable  230.36  149.77 

 - Sales Tax / VATPayable -  11.98 

Deposits from Customers(unsecured and payable on demand)  12.25  12.25 

Unclaimed Dividends (refer note below)  77.35  79.35 

Total  886.87  654.91 

Note : There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013 as 
at the year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

 2017 
Rs. Lakhs 

2016
 Rs. Lakhs

Note 10 : Short Term Provisions

Proposed Final Dividend -  447.05 

Tax on Proposed Final Dividend (refer point no. 12 of Note 27) -  91.01 

Provision for Employee Benefits

 - Compensated Absences  96.55  85.11 

 - Gratuity(refer Note 27 point no. 5.6)  68.52 3.75 

Total  165.07  626.92 

Note 11 : FIXED ASSETS

 Gross Block  Depreciation  Net Block 

 TANGIBLE ASSETS

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2017 

 Additions  Disposal 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2017 

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2017 

 Charge 
for the 
year 

 Disposal 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2017 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2017 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Freehold Land 151.92  -  -  151.92  -  - -  -  151.92 151.92 

 Leasehold Land  3.95  -  -  3.95 1.19 0.04 - 1.23  2.72  2.76 

 Factory Buildings 1,007.27  6.01  - 1,013.28  394.53 38.60 - 433.13 580.15  612.74 

 Buildings Others  521.56  -  - 521.56 243.41  19.47 -  262.88  258.68  278.15 

 Plant and Machinery 4,701.47 174.60  141.02 4,735.05  3,306.11  392.80  140.27 3,558.64  1,176.41  1,395.36 

 Laboratory Equipment  89.65 13.20 0.25 102.60  72.95 7.45  0.24  80.16 22.44  16.70 

 Office Equipment  98.69 4.07 3.97 98.79  67.24  15.08  3.23 79.09  19.70  31.45 

 Furniture and Fixtures 247.70  -  1.43  246.27  225.05  6.14 1.43  229.76 16.51 22.65 

 Motor Vehicles  108.06  46.68 44.22  110.52  80.75 23.88 42.99  61.64 48.88  27.31 

Total 6,930.27  244.56  190.89 6,983.94 4,391.23 503.46  188.16 4,706.53  2,277.41 2,539.04 

Included in the above additions, the capital expenditure towards Research & Development Activities is Nil (Previous Year Rs. 1.89 Lakhs)

 Gross Block  Amortisation  Net Block 

 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2017 

 Additions  Disposal 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2017 

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2017 

 Charge 
for the 
year 

 Disposal 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2017 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2017 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

Computer Software (acquired) 139.32 -  26.11 113.21 108.58 30.67 26.11 113.14  0.07 30.74 

 Total 139.32 - 26.11 113.21 108.58 30.67  26.11 113.14 0.07 30.74 

 Rs. Lakhs
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Note 11 : FIXED ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Category / Group of Asset  Gross Block  Amortisation  Net Block 

 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2016 

 Additions  Disposal 
 Reclassi-
fication of 

assets 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2016 

 Charge 
for the 
year 

 Disposal 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2015 

Computer Software (acquired)  259.97  1.82  122.47  - 139.32 198.68  32.37 122.47 108.58 30.74  61.29 

 Total  259.97 1.82  122.47  - 139.32 198.68  32.37  122.47 108.58 30.74  61.29 

Category / Group of 
Asset 

 Gross Block  Depreciation  Net Block 

 TANGIBLE ASSETS

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2016 

 Additions  Disposal 
 Reclassific

ation of 
assets 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Opening 
Balance
 01-Jan-

2016 

 Adjustme
nt due to 

reclassific
ation of 

 Charge 
for the 
year 

 Disposal 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2016 

 Closing 
Balance
 31-Dec-

2015 

 Freehold Land 151.92  -  - -  151.92  -  -  - -  -  151.92 151.92 

 Leasehold Land  3.95  -  - -  3.95 1.15  - 0.04 -  1.19  2.76  2.80 

 Factory Buildings 1,007.27  -  - -  1,007.27  356.02  -  38.51 -  394.53 612.74  651.25 

 Buildings Others  521.56  -  - - 521.56  223.94  -  19.47 - 243.41 278.15 297.62 

 Plant and Machinery  4,422.32 412.33  133.18 -  4,701.47  3,069.87  -  363.57  127.33 3,306.11  1,395.36  1,352.45 

 Laboratory Equipment  152.64  1.89 2.43 (62.45) 89.65  112.63 (45.18) 7.52  2.02 72.95  16.70  40.01 

 Office Equipment  28.65  8.15 0.56 62.45 98.69 7.06 45.18  15.56  0.56 67.24  31.45  21.59 

 Furniture and Fixtures  243.91 3.99 0.20 -  247.70 217.55  - 7.70  0.20  225.05 22.65 26.36 

 Motor Vehicles  102.37 11.13 5.44 - 108.06  65.73  - 20.46  5.44 80.75  27.31 36.64 

Total 6,634.59  437.49 141.81  - 6,930.27  4,053.95 - 472.83 135.55  4,391.23 2,539.04 2,580.64 

During the year, the Company has rectified the classification of certain office equipment which were wrongly classified in laboratory equipment.

Included in the above additions, the capital expenditure towards Research & Development Activities is Rs. 1.89 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 0.70 Lakhs)

 Rs. Lakhs
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 2017 
Rs. Lakhs 

2016
 Rs. Lakhs

Note 12 : Deferred Tax Asset

Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciation - (29.13)

- (29.13)

Deferred Tax Assets 

Depreciation 4.07  - 

Expenditure debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the current
period but allowed for the tax purpose in subsequent assessment years 

84.87 92.43 

Provision for doubtful debts 134.33 117.49 

223.27 209.92 

Deferred Tax Asset Net Total 223.27 180.79 

      

Note 13 : Long Term Loans and Advances

To the parties other than related parties

 Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated 

 - Capital Advances 4.91 54.61 

 - Security Deposits 34.94 35.65 

 Other Loans and Advances 

- Advances with Income Tax Authorities (Net of Provisions) 331.34 656.64 

- Loans to Employees 17.12 3.71 

Total 388.31 750.61 

      

Note 14 : Inventories

 (Valued at Lower of Cost and NRV) 

Raw Materials ( refer note below )  1,112.93  1,386.02 

Finished Goods ( refer note below ) 482.47 473.53 

Work-in-Progress 71.05 53.58 

Stock - in - Trade 4.70 3.30 

Total  1,671.15  1,916.43 

Note :

Raw Material in Bond 88.40 247.55 

Raw Material in Transit 231.89 245.56 

Finished Goods in Transit 24.98  - 

Note 15 : Trade Receivables

Unsecured :

Debts Outstanding for a Period Exceeding Six Months from Due Date

 -Considered Good 380.26 244.90 

 -Considered Doubtful 388.14 339.47 

768.40 584.37 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts 388.14 339.47 

380.26 244.90 

Other Debts

- Considered Good  9,677.33  9,715.76 

 -Considered Doubtful -  - 

 9,677.33  9,715.76 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts -  - 

 9,677.33  9,715.76 

Total  10,057.59  9,960.66 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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 2017 
Rs. Lakhs 

2016
 Rs. Lakhs

Note 16 : Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash on Hand 2.64 2.14 

 Cheques on Hand - 66.76 

 Balances with Banks

- In current accounts  2,257.95  2,047.15 

- Demand Deposits (less than three months maturity)  4,915.00  - 

Other Bank Balances

 -Deposits with maturity more than three months but less than 12 months 0.52 311.80 

 -Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend Accounts # 77.35 79.35 

Total  7,253.46  2,507.20 

# These are restricted bank balances for payment of Unpaid Dividend     

      

Note 17 : Short Term Loans and Advances

Unsecured, Considered Good, Unless Otherwise stated

 - Advance for supply of goods and services 26.65 244.84 

 - Prepaid Expenses 52.20 98.74 

 - Current maturities of long term loans to employees 7.93 3.54 

 - Employee Travel Advances 0.27 0.24 

Balances with Excise and Customs Authorities

 -Service Tax - 25.19 

Related Party (Unsecured, Considered Good, Unless Otherwise stated)

 - Dues for Reimbursements 3.90 13.19 

Total 90.95 385.74 

Note 18 : Other Current Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good

 - Interest Accrued on Deposits with Banks 16.94 0.52 

Total 16.94 0.52 

      

Note 19 : Revenue from Operations

Sale of Products (refer below note - I)  37,496.15  37,984.44 

Less : Excise Duty (refer Note 27 point no. 11)  2,109.32  4,101.34 

 35,386.83  33,883.10 

Sale of Services 2.49 6.94 

Other Operating Revenues (refer details below note - II) 370.15 60.46 

Turnover Total  35,759.47  33,950.50 

      

Note - I

Sale of stock- in - trade included in sale of products 699.92  1,069.41 

Note - II

Details for Other Operating Revenues

Sale of Scrap 18.78 24.01 

Sale of Raw Material and Packing Material 351.37 36.45 

370.15 60.46 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
 2017 

Rs. Lakhs 
2016

 Rs. Lakhs 

Note 20 : Other Income

From Other Sources

Interest Income

 -On Bank Deposits  115.68  20.54 

 -From Income Tax Authorities  37.67  73.07 

Excess Provisions / Accruals of Earlier Years Written Back  18.78  55.30 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  13.00 - 

Others

 -Other Service Cost Reimbursed  16.70  16.70 

 -Management and Service Fees  12.00  12.00 

 -Insurance Claim Received -  6.74 

 -Other Miscellaneous Income  39.21  25.09 

Total  253.04  209.44 

Note 21 : Cost of Material Consumed

Raw Material Consumed

 Opening Stock 1,386.02  1,066.81 

Add : Purchases  20,772.08  19,459.73 

 22,158.10  20,526.54 

 Less : Closing Stock 1,112.93  1,386.02 

Total  21,045.17  19,140.52 

Note 22 : Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Purchases of Traded Goods  568.89  849.21 

Total  568.89  849.21 

Note 23 : Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods, Stock-in-
Trade and Work-in-Progress

(Increase) / Decrease in Finished Goods Manufactured

 Opening Stock  473.53  516.80 

 Less : Closing Stock  482.47  473.53 

(8.94)  43.27 

(Increase) / Decrease in Stock-in-Trade 

 Opening Stock 3.30  4.27 

 Less : Closing Stock 4.70  3.30 

(1.40)  0.97 

(Increase) / Decrease in Work-in-Progress

 Opening Stock  53.58 - 

 Less : Closing Stock  71.05  53.58 

(17.47)  (53.58)

Total (27.81) (9.34)

Note 24 : Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,511.06  2,221.87 

Contributions to Provident and Other Funds  275.07  272.67 

Gratuity (refer Note 27 point no. 5.6)  114.39  11.75 

Staff Welfare Expense  225.67  154.60 

Total 3,126.19  2,660.89 

Above expenses includes, expenditure on Research & Development Activities,

 as certified by the Management of the Company 57.06 59.24
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 2017 
Rs. Lakhs 

2016
 Rs. Lakhs 

Note 25 : Finance Cost

Interest Expense 35.26 41.52 

Total 35.26  41.52

Note 26 : Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores and Spares 43.43 72.80 

Power and Fuel 336.42 314.27 

Repairs and Maintenance - Plant and Machinery 519.63 493.05 

Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 35.89 72.45 

Processing Charges 262.04 274.00 

Freight and Forwarding Expenses 917.23 819.79 

Rates and Taxes 66.28 64.51 

Insurance 66.15 64.78 

Advertising 86.87 54.90 

Travelling and Conveyance 478.48 444.24 

Telephone Charges 37.42 36.92 

Professional Charges 370.44 355.42 

Directors' Sitting Fees 20.70 6.40 

Auditor's Remuneration (refer details below) 55.16 48.35 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net) 90.96 127.01 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 88.98 257.23 

Bad Debts 3.58 19.92 

Loss on Fixed Assets Sold / Discarded (Net) - 4.53 

Bank Charges 14.45 21.42 

Software Maintenance Charges 38.91 52.26 

Royalty  1,535.88  1,484.25 

R&D Cess on Royalty 19.69 76.44 

Consultancy Service Fees 565.56 416.60 

Commission to Non Whole Time Directors 21.70 21.70 

Safety & Security Expenses 106.32 96.47 

Printing and Stationery 33.26 23.98 

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) activities (refer Note 27 point no. 8)

94.27 41.81 

Miscellaneous Expenses 42.94 74.17 

Total  5,952.64  5,839.67 

Above expenses includes, expenditure on Research & Development Activities

as certified by the Management of the Company 12.09 17.80

Details of Auditors' Remuneration 

 i As an auditor:

- Statutory Audit Fees  27.98  21.85 

- Tax Audit Fees 7.00  7.50 

- Fees for Limited Review  10.25  9.75 

- Other Audit Services 7.00  5.68 

- Reimbursement of Expenses 2.93  3.57 

Total Auditors' Remuneration  55.16  48.35 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1   Disclosure of Related Parties / Related Party Transactions

a. Name of Related Party Where Control Exists

i Vesuvius Plc., United Kingdom -Ultimate Parent Company

ii Vesuvius Holdings Limited, United Kingdom -Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Company

iii Foseco Holding Limited, United Kingdom -Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Company

iv Foseco (U.K.) Limited., United Kingdom -Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Company

v Foseco Overseas Limited, United Kingdom -Immediate Holding Company 

ii. Key Management Personnel 

Name Designation

1) Mr Sanjay Mathur Managing Director

2) Mr R Umesh Chief Financial Officer

3) Mr Mahendra Kumar Dutia Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary *

* ( As per Companies Act, 2013)

b. Names of Related Parties with whom transactions were carried out for the Financial Year ended 31 
December 2017.

i. Fellow Subsidiaries

 1)  Foseco (Thailand) Limited 

 2)  Foseco Foundry (China) Company Limited 

 3)  Foseco Golden Gate Company Limited, Taiwan 

 4)  Foseco Industrial e-Commercial Ltda., Brazil 

 5)  Foseco International Limited, United Kingdom 

 6)  Foseco Japan Limited 

 7)  Foseco Korea Limited 

 8)  Foseco Nederland BV. 

 9)  Foseco Philippines Inc. 

 10)  PT Foseco Trading Indonesia 

 11)  PT Foseco Indonesia 

 12)  Vesuvius Australia Pty Ltd. 

 13)  Vesuvius Emirates (FZE), Dubai 

 14)  Vesuvius Foundry Technologies (Jiangsu) Company Limited, China 

 15)  Vesuvius GmbH, Germany 

 16)  Vesuvius Group SA, Belgium 

 17)  Vesuvius India Limited 

 18)  Vesuvius Italia S.P.A. 

 19)  Vesuvius Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 

 20)  Vesuvius New Zealand Limited 

 21)  Vesuvius Poland Sp. Z.o.o. 

 22)  Vesuvius Ras Al Khaimah FZ-LLC, Dubai 

 23)  Vesuvius UK Limited, United Kingdom 

 24)  Vesuvius Inc., USA 

Note 27 : Disclosure Notes 
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Note 27 : Disclosure Notes (continued)

* The above figure represents interim dividend paid during the year and final dividend for the previous year ended 
31 December 2016

** Including reimbursement of expenses

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Nature of Transaction

Nature of Relationship

Immediate 
Holding 

Company

 Subsidaries of 
Ultimate Parent 

Company

Fellow 
Subsidiaries

Key 
Management 

Personnel
Total

Purchases - - 1,934.84  - 1,934.84 

Sales - - 1,841.17  - 1,841.17 

Salaries and Perquisites - -  -  315.44  315.44 

Dividend* 740.84 216.93  -  -  957.77 

Royalty - - 1,535.88  - 1,535.88 

Consultancy Service Fees - -  565.56  -  565.56 

Services Rendered ** - -  329.97  -  329.97 

Services Received ** - -  69.29  -  69.29 

Total 740.84 216.93 6,276.71  315.44 7,549.92 

Related Party Transactions Above 10% of the Total Transactional Value Amount in Rs. Lakhs

 Purchases - Foseco Japan Limited 371.34 

 Purchases - Vesuvius GmbH, Germany  1,177.79 

 Purchases - Vesuvius UK Limited, United Kingdom 240.17 

 Sales - Foseco (Thailand) Limited 258.70 

 Sales - Foseco Foundry (China) Company Limited 358.34 

 Sales - PT Foseco Trading Indonesia 305.69 

 Sales - Vesuvius Emirates (FZE), Dubai 410.65 

 Salaries and Perquisites - Mr Sanjay Mathur, Managing Director 214.23 

 Salaries and Perquisites - Mr R Umesh, Chief Financial Officer 74.18 

 Dividend - Foseco Overseas Limited, United Kingdom 740.84 

 Dividend - Vesuvius Holdings Limited, United Kingdom 108.81 

 Dividend - Foseco UK Limited, United Kingdom 108.11 

 Royalty - Foseco International Limited, United Kingdom  1,535.88 

 Consultancy Service Fees - Vesuvius Group SA, Belgium 565.56 

 Services Rendered - Foseco International Limited, United Kingdom 286.67 

 Services Received - Vesuvius UK Limited, United Kingdom 10.97 

 Services Received - Vesuvius Group SA, Belgium 48.82 

c.  Disclosure of Related Party Transactions

 For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2017:

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
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For the financial Year Ended 31 December 2016:
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

* The above figure represents interim dividend paid during the year and final dividend for the previous year ended 
31 December 2015

** Including reimbursement of expenses

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Nature of Transaction

Nature of Relationship

Immediate 
Holding 

Company

 Subsidaries of 
Ultimate Parent 

Company

Fellow 
Subsidiaries

Key 
Management 

Personnel
Total

Purchases - - 1,804.28  - 1,804.28 

Purchase of Fixed Asset - -  32.42  -  32.42 

Sales - - 1,315.27  - 1,315.27 

Salaries and Perquisites - -  -  306.39  306.39 

Dividend* 851.97 249.46  -  - 1,101.43 

Royalty - - 1,484.25  - 1,484.25 

Consultancy Service Fees - -  416.60  -  416.60 

Services Rendered ** - -  343.11  -  343.11 

Services Received ** - -  59.26  -  59.26 

Total 851.97 249.46 5,455.19  306.39 6,863.01 

Related Party Transactions Above 10% of the Total Transactional Value Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Purchase - Foseco Japan Limited 983.65 

Purchase - Vesuvius GmbH, Germany 351.88 

Purchase - Vesuvius UK Limited 218.80 

Purchase of Fixed Asset - Vesuvius GmbH, Germany 32.42 

Sale-Foseco Foundry (China) Company Limited 311.98 

Sale-Vesuvius Emirates (FZE), Dubai 424.19 

Sale-Vesuvius Malyaysia Sdn.Bhd. 213.02 

 Salaries and Perquisites - Mr Sanjay Mathur,Managing Director 205.36 

 Salaries and Perquisites - Mr R Umesh, Chief Financial Officer 74.56 

Dividend-Foseco Overseas Limited, United Kingdom 851.97 

Dividend-Vesuvius Holdings Limited, United Kingdom 125.14 

Dividend-Foseco (UK) Limited, United Kingdom 124.32 

Royalty- Foseco International Limited, United Kingdom  1,484.25 

Consultancy Service Fees - Vesuvius Group SA, Belgium 416.60 

Services Rendered - Foseco International Limited, United Kingdom 268.29 

Services Rendered - Vesuvius India Limited 51.05 

Services Received - Vesuvius Group SA, Belgium 50.45 
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2  Related Party Receivable and Payable

2.1 Amount Receivable From Related Parties

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

2.2 Amount Payable To Related Parties
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Name of the Company 2017 2016

 Foseco (Thailand) Limited  47.14 24.92 

 Foseco Foundry (China) Company Limited  - 56.59 

 Vesuvius UK Limited, United Kingdom  16.20  - 

 Foseco Korea Limited  - 10.17 

 PT Foseco Indonesia 145.55  - 

 Vesuvius Emirates (FZE), Dubai 285.34 132.12 

 Foseco Trading Indonesia  - 44.04 

 Vesuvius India Limited  3.54 11.85 

 Vesuvius Foundry Technologies (Jiangsu) Company Limited, China  57.81  - 

 Foseco Phillipines Inc  2.17  - 

 Foseco Golden Gate Company Limited, Taiwan  0.01  - 

 Vesuvius Malaysia Sdn Bhd  10.27 29.97 

 PT. Foseco Trading Indonesia  48.31  - 

 Total  616.34 309.66 

Name of the Company 2017 2016

 Foseco International Limited, United Kingdom 332.10 318.33 

 Foseco Japan Limited  35.57 215.51 

 Foseco Nederland BV.  -  5.14 

 Vesuvius GmbH, Germany 476.86 155.22 

 Vesuvius Group SA, Belgium 166.56 88.85 

 Vesuvius Poland Sp. Z.o.o.  1.32  6.22 

 Foseco SMC Nederlands  6.75  - 

 Foseco Foundry (China) Company Limited  -  0.02 

 PT Foseco Indonesia  -  0.92 

 Foseco Korea Limited  0.67  - 

 Foseco Industrial e-Commercial Ltda., Brazil  1.08  - 

 Vesuvius India Limited  0.47  - 

 Vesuvius UK Limited, United Kingdom  32.08 56.62 

 Vesuvius Inc., USA  34.62 38.65 

 Total  1,088.08 885.48 
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 3.2  Commitments:
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars 2017 2016

i.
Estimated Amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 
and not provided for (net of advance payments)

11.68  18.68 

 Particulars 2017 2016

 Amount included in Sales 302.26  290.78 

4 Freight Recovery
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

5 Supplementary Statutory Information

5.1  Earnings in Foreign Currency 
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 Particulars 2017 2016

 F. O. B. Value of Exports 1831.5  1,322.30 

 Commission and Reimbursements 303.48  292.06 

Total  2,134.98  1,614.36 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

 3.1  Contingent Liabilities

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars 2017 2016

 i. Counter Guarantees given to Banks in respect of Guarantee given by them  15.71 11.76 

 ii. Central Excise Demands in respect of which the Company is in Appeal  - 7.69 

 iii. Income Tax Demands in respect of which the Company is in Appeal 140.95 523.33 

 iv. Sales Tax Demands in respect of which the Company is in Appeal  26.65  - 
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5.2 Expenditure in Foreign Currency 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2017 2016

Travelling  4.43 2.31 

Consultancy Service Fees 565.56 416.60 

Royalty  1,535.88  1,484.25 

Services Received (Reimbursements)  85.76 88.44 

Total  2,191.63  1,991.60 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5.3 Value of Imports [on CIF Basis] 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 Particulars 2017 2016

Raw Materials  4,589.60 4,034.53 

Capital Goods and Spares  27.39 32.42 

Total  4,616.99  4,066.95 

5.4 Dividend Remitted During the Year to Non-resident Shareholders 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 Particulars 2017 2016

Number of Shareholders 4 4

 

Number of Shares Held  55,22,071 55,22,071 

 A. Final Dividend   

 (i) Amount remitted 386.54 386.54 

(ii) Year to which dividend related 2016 2015 

 B. Interim Dividend   

 (i) Amount remitted 717.87 883.53 

(ii) Year to which dividend related 2017 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5.5 Un-hedged Foreign Currency Exposure 

 Foreign curreny exposures on account of trade receivables / trade payables not hedged by derivative instruments 
are as follows:

5.6 Employee Benefit Plans

 Gratuity: In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 

plan (Gratuity Scheme) covering certain categories of employees. The Gratuity Scheme provides a lump sum 

payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of employment, an amount based on the respective 

employee's last drawn salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Company provides the gratuity 

benefit through annual contributions to the fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), under 

this plan the settlement obligation remains with the Company although the Life Insurance Corporation of India, 

administers the plan and determines the contribution of premium required to be paid by the Company.

Currency 2017 2016

Amount in Foreign 
Currency

Amount in Indian Rs. 
Lakhs

Amount in Foreign 
Currency

Amount in Indian Rs. 
Lakhs

Accounts Receivables

USD  9,21,811 607.93 4,59,945 303.20 

GBP 19,005 16.87  -  - 

Accounts Payables

USD  4,23,175  262.79 1,62,893 114.03 

EUR  8,57,685  636.14 3,96,371 292.05 

GBP 36,891  30.83 67,551  58.09 

JPY  62,77,727  34.57 370,69,396 222.41 
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i) Defined Benefits Plan
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Table set out the status of Gratuity Plan as required under AS 15 (Revised 2005) 2017 2016

(a)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the Present Value of the Defined 
Benefit Obligations:

 Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 762.36 764.14 

 Current Service Cost 80.22  47.42 

 Interest Cost 51.77  49.25 

 Benefits Paid  (66.49)  (68.91)

 Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 83.34  (29.54)

 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 911.20 762.36 
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i) Defined Benefits Plan (continued)
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Table set out the status of Gratuity Plan as required under AS 15 (Revised 2005) 2017 2016

(b)
Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the Fair Value of Plan 
Assets:

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 758.62 681.08 

 Expected Return on Plan Assets 64.05  57.59 

 Employer Contributions 49.62  91.07 

 Benefits Paid  (66.49)  (68.91)

 Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 36.88  (2.21)

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 842.68 758.62 

(c)
Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair 
Value of Plan Assets / Liability to the assets recognised in the Balance Sheet:

 Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 911.19 762.36 

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year (842.67)  (758.62)

 Plan Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 68.52  3.74 

(d) The Total Expense Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

 Current Service Cost 80.22  47.42 

 Interest Cost 51.77  49.25 

 Expected Return on Plan Assets  (64.05)  (57.59)

 Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 46.46  (27.33)

 Net Gratuity Cost 114.40  11.75 

(e) Actual Return on Plan Assets:

 Actual Return on Plan Assets 100.93  55.38 
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Note 27 : Disclosure Notes (continued)

The Company has invested the plan assets with the Life Insurance Corporation of India. Expected rate of return on the plan 

asset has been determined scientifically considering the current and expected plan asset allocation, historical rate of return 

earned by the company, current market trend and the expected return on the plan assets.
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The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry 

standards. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, 

promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

ii) Defined Contribution Plan:-

 The Company has recognised the following amounts which are defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 Particulars 2017 2016

 Provident Fund 121.64  119.79 

 Superannuation Scheme 151.16  146.18 

 Total  272.80  265.97 

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.  Liquid Phenol 871.07  1,269.19 

ii.  Others 20174.10  17,871.33 

 Total 21045.17  19,140.52

6 Additional Information Pursuant to the Provisions of Paragraph 5 of Part II of Schedule III to the Companies 
Act, 2013

6.1 Details of Raw Materials

 6.1.1 Consumption of Raw Materials during the year 

(f) Principal Assumption used as at the Balance Sheet date:

  2017 2016

 Discount Rate 7.10% p.a. 6.75% p.a.

 Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels 6.50% p.a  7% p.a. 

 Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 8% p.a. 8% p.a.

 Employee Turnover 12% p.a. 12.5% p.a.

(g) Amount recognized in current year and previous 4 years

   2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

  Defined Benefit Obligation  911.20  762.36 764.14 715.05  651.78 

  Plan Assets  842.67  758.62 681.08 684.62  602.76 

  (Surplus) / Deficit 68.51 3.74 83.06 30.43  49.02 

  Experience Adjustment inPlan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss  104.04 (47.19) 16.67  (33.23)  43.15 

  Experience Adjustment inPlan Assets (Gain) / Loss (36.88) 5.81 36.50  (19.48)  4.59 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6.1 Details of Raw Materials (continued)

6.1.2 Consumption of Raw Materials by source

6.1.3 Purchase of Raw Materials during the year 

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.  Liquid Phenol 777.07  1,349.71 

ii.  Others 19,995.01  18,110.02 

 Total 20,772.08  19,459.73 

6.1.4 Closing Stock of Raw Materials as at 

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.  Liquid Phenol  -  94.01

ii.  Others  1,112.93  1,292.01

 Total  1,112.93  1,386.02 

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.
 Metallurgical Chemicals
 (includes purchase of machinery used in foundry industry) 

568.89  849.21

 Total 568.89 849.21

6.2.2 Sale of Traded Goods during the year

6.2 Details of Traded Goods

 6.2.1 Purchase of Traded Goods during the year

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.
 Metallurgical Chemicals
 (includes sale of machinery used in foundry industry) 

699.92 1,069.41

 Total 699.92 1,069.41

6.2.3 Closing Stock of Traded Goods as at

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.  Metallurgical Chemicals 4.70 3.30

 Total 4.70 3.30

Class of Goods
Percentage to Total Consumption Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

Imported 22.27 14.96  4,686.17  2,864.31 

Indigenous 77.73 85.04 16,359.00  16,276.21 

Total 100.00 100.00 21,045.17  19,140.52 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6.3 Details of Work-in-Progress as at

6.4 Details of Finished Goods 

 6.4.1 Sale of Finished Goods during the year

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

i.  Liquid Phenol 8.23  12.54

ii.  Others 62.82  41.04

 Total  71.05  53.58

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

1  Phenolformaldehyde Binder System 6,696.42  7,043.11 

2  Feeding Systems 6,993.01  6,209.73 

3  Inoculants 3,540.13  3,858.85 

4  Water Based Alumino Silicate Coating 2,922.47  2,692.03 

5  Spirit Based Zircon Coating 2,725.81  2,613.39 

6  Others 11,809.07  10,396.58 

 Total 34,686.91  32,813.69

6.4.2 Closing Stock of Finished Goods as at

Sr. No.  Particulars
Value (in Rs. Lakhs) Value (in Rs. Lakhs)

2017 2016

1  Non Ferrous Foundry 136.98 146.06 

2  Feeding System  87.04 86.13 

3  Phenolformaldehyde Binder System  62.73 44.33 

4  Others 195.72 197.01 

 Total 482.47 473.53 

7 Segmental Reporting

 The Company operates in a single business segment, metallurgical products and services, as defined by Accounting 

Standard 17. Secondary segmental reporting is identified on the basis of the geographical location of the customers. The 

Company has identified India and rest of the world for secondary segmental reporting. 

 Geographical sales are segregated based on the location of the customer who is invoiced or in relation to which the sale 

is otherwise recognised.  Assets other than receivables used in the Company’s business or liabilities contracted have not 

been identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are used interchangeably between segments. All assets other 

than receivables are located in India. Similarly, capital expenditure is incurred towards fixed assets located in India.

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

* Only Trade Receivable

Segment
Segment Revenues Segment Assets*

2017 2016 2017 2016

India 33,658.74  32,386.50  9,441.25  9,651.00 

Rest of the World (mainly Middle East Asia) 1,728.09  1,496.60 616.34  309.66 

Total 35,386.83  33,883.10  10,057.59  9,960.66 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8 Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

 As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, (Act) a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been 

duly constituted by the Company. The funds allocated for CSR activities was Rs. 93.36 (Previous Year Rs. 75.98/-) Lakhs 

of which utilised by the Company as specified under Schedule VII of the Act is provided herein below

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

9.  Earnings Per Share (EPS)

10 Provision for Tax

 The Company’s Management is of the opinion that its international transactions with associated enterprises are at ‘arm’s 

length’ and that the Company is in compliance with the transfer pricing legislation. Further, the Company is in the process 

of updating its documentation in respect of international transactions with Associated Enterprises as required under 

section 92E of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company’s Management believes that the aforesaid legislation will not 

have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and the provision for tax as at and 

for the year ended 31 December 2017.

11 Goods and Services Tax     

 Pursuant to the introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from 1st July, 2017, Central Excise, Value 

Added Tax etc. have been subsumed into GST. In accordance with the accounting requirements, unlike Excise Duty, 

GST is not presented as part of revenue from operations.

12 Proposed dividend

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)     

Sr. No.  Particulars 2017 2016

1  Profit for the Year after Tax   3,131.91   3,308.17 

2  Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic EPS (a)  3,131.91  3,308.17 

3
Weighted average number of equity shares shares outstanding for calculation 
of Basic and Diluted EPS (b) 

 63,86,459  63,86,459 

4  Basic Earning Per Share ( (a) / (b) )  49.04   51.80 

5  Diluted Earning Per Share ( (a) / (b) )  49.04   51.80 

Sr. No.  Particulars 2017 2016

1  Girl Child Education 31.18  32.81 

2  Promoting Healthcare 39.50  9.00 

3  Social Infrastructure 23.59 - 

  Total 94.27  41.81 

  As at 31st December 2017 As at 31st December 2016

a  On Equity Shares of Rs 10 each   

b  Amount of dividend proposed 766.38  447.05

c  Dividend per Equity Share  Rs. 12 per share Rs.7 per share
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 Until the previous year, the dividend proposed by the Board of directors after the balance sheet date but before the 

approval of the financial statements was recognized as a liability. Consequent to the amendment to AS 4 - Contingencies 

and Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet date, effective from the current year, such dividend is recognized when the 

same is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. The board of directors have proposed a final dividend of 

Rs. 766.38 lakhs for the year ended December 31, 2017.

13 Prior Period Comparative     

 Certain comparative figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary to confirm the current year 

position. 

As per our report of even date attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of

Firm Registration No. 012754N / N500016 Directors of Foseco India Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L24294PN1958PLC011052

Amit Borkar Pradeep Mallick  Sanjay Mathur  Ajit Shah 

Partner Chairman  Managing Director  Director 

Membership No. 109846 DIN : 00061256  DIN : 00029858  DIN : 02396765 

Indira Parikh  Glenn Cowie

Director  Director

DIN : 00143801  DIN : 07163534

R Umesh  Mahendra Dutia

Chief Financial Officer  Controller of Accounts and Company Secretary

Place :Pune Date :1st February 2018 Place :Lonavala  Date : 1st February 2018
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Proxy Form
(FORM NO. MGT - 11)

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s): ………………………………………................………………………………………………

Registered address …………………….…………................………………………………………………………......

………………………………………………………………………………................………………………………......

E-mail ID: ……………………….............………… Folio No./Client ID: ……….………….. DP ID: ………………..…

I / We being the Member(s) holding…….........................…… shares of Foseco India Limited, hereby appoint:

1) Name: ……………………………………………................…………………………………………………………..

Address: …………………………………………………………..................……………………………………………

having E-mail id ………...........…………………….. Signature …........……………………………. or failing him/her

2) Name: ……………………………………………................…………………………………………………………..

Address: …………………………………………………………..................……………………………………………

having E-mail id ………...........…………………….. Signature …........……………………………. or failing him/her

3) Name: ……………………………………………................…………………………………………………………..

Address: …………………………………………………………..................……………………………………………

having E-mail id …………………….…...………….. Signature ………………………………. 

stas my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 61  Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 24 April 2018 at 1200 Hours (IST) at the Registered Office of 

the Company, at Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, Taluka Shirur, District Pune 412 208. and at any adjournment 

thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Signed this ……….................…….......................………….. day of ………..........……….. 2018

Notes:

1. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 

the Meeting.

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstained column 

blank against any or all resolution, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / 

she may deem appropriate.

3. Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members 

not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 

capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed 

by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying 

voting right, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

4. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

Foseco India Limited
Registered Office: Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, Taluka Shirur,
District Pune – 412208.Tele: +91 (0)2137 668100, Fax: +91 (0)2137 668360,
Website: , E-mail ID: www.fosecoindia.com investor.grievance@foseco.com
Corporate Identity Number: L24294PN1958PLC011052

Resolution No. Subject Matter of the Resolution

1.
Adoption of the Audited Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 together with the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon

2. Confirmation of payment of Interim Dividends and declaration of Final Dividend on Equity Shares

3. Appointment of Ms. Merryl France Durrenbach as a Director of the Company who retires by rotation

4. Ratification of the Appointment of the Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration

5. Ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the year 2018

Affix a One 

Rupee 

Revenue 

Stamp

Signature of the Shareholder

Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited



104Annual Report 2017 Foseco India Limited



Financial Highlights

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Years 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Operating Results

Sales & Other Income  22,945.47  26,673.01  29,402.49  34,159.94  36,012.51 

Total Expenses  19,693.62  22,416.65  24,145.44  28,480.95  30,665.08 

EBITDA  3,251.85  4,256.36  5,257.05  5,678.99  5,347.43 

Interest  26.45  17.42  12.20  41.52  35.26 

Depreciation  511.87  465.40  454.00  505.20  534.13 

Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary 
Item

 2,713.53  3,773.54  4,790.85  5,132.27  4,778.04 

Extraordinary Items  -  -  -  - 

Tax Expense  931.48  1,314.52  1,617.96  1,824.10  1,646.13 

Profit after Taxation  1,782.05  2,459.02  3,172.89  3,308.17  3,131.91 

Sources and Application of Funds

Share Capital  638.65  638.65  638.65  638.65  638.65 

Reserves  8,258.67  9,148.58  10,253.88  11,794.13  13,926.78 

Shareholders Funds  8,897.32  9,787.23  10,892.53  12,432.78  14,565.43 

Loan Funds / Non Current Liabilities  823.94  598.58  294.19  152.21  127.73 

Current Liabilities  4,952.16  4,805.37  5,091.98  5,710.90  7,401.26 

Total Sources  14,673.42  15,191.18  16,278.70  18,295.89  22,094.42 

Net Fixed Assets  2,782.00  2,610.87  2,718.10  2,593.94  2,392.75 

Investments  8.18  2.92  -  -  - 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  125.46  155.48  140.65  180.79  223.27 

Long Term Loans and Advances  1,188.79  683.29  983.70  750.61  388.31 

Net Current Assets  10,568.99  11,682.31  12,436.25  14,770.55  19,090.09 

Total Application  14,673.42  15,134.87  16,278.70  18,295.89  22,094.42 

Debt Equity Ratio  0.09  0.06  0.03  0.01  0.01 

Earning per Share (Rs.)  27.90  38.50  49.68  51.80  49.04 

Dividend per Share (Rs.)  24.50  21.00  26.50  23.00  25.00 



• The preferred partner to the foundry industry providing the greatest value

• A highly respected industry leader with which all stakeholders are proud to be associated

Our Vision is to become 

Our Business Strategy 

To improve our customer's business performance; 

• By being the supplier providing greatest value

• Achieved through a  delivering improved solutions partnering and value selling approach

foundry processes and casting quality

• Based upon  foundry process and application expertise, and world-class proprietary technology,

excellence in quality & customer service

FOSECO INDIA LIMITED
Gat Nos. 922 & 923, Sanaswadi, Pune-Nagar Road,
Taluka Shirur, District Pune - 412 208, Maharashtra (India)
Tel: +91 (0) 2137 668100 / Fax: +91 (0) 2137 668360
Website: www.fosecoindia.com
E-mail ID: investor.grievance@foseco.com
CIN: L24294PN1958PLC011052

Our Values


